
 

Page 1 of 262 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 04, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of January 21, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Old Business 

2. Pass Ordinance #2935, amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located to the north of Arbors Drive and west of Richard Road from A-1, Agricultural District, and 
placing the same in R-1, Residence District, upon its third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

3. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 21, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) West 1st Street Reconstruction Project Update.  
b) Amendments to the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District. 
c) Bills & Payroll. 

4. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of December 2018. 

5. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement 
relative to a First Tobacco Violation regarding Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 

6. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 Caraway Lane, 
Class C liquor & outdoor service - adding Class B wine. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

7. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Video Production Specialist 
in the Information Systems Division. 

8. Resolution approving and adopting certain revised Personnel Policies. 

9. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a lease relative to property vacated by the 2008 
flood buyout programs. 

1



 

Page 2 of 262 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Storage of Portable Single 
Classroom Unit with the Cedar Falls Community School District relative to storage of two portable 
classroom units. 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of furniture from 
Storey Kenworthy, Kirk Gross and Office Concepts for the Public Safety Facility. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of one Owner Purchase Agreement and seven 
Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting two Public Utility Easements, one 
Owner's Temporary Grading Easement for Construction and one Tenant's Temporary Grading for 
Construction Easement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project. 

14. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Peters 
Construction Corporation, in the amount of $404,938.53, for the Place to Play Playground Project. 

15. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $4,711,475.14, for the 2019 Street Construction Project. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to 2019 Engineering Services. 

17. Resolution approving the closure of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program (a/k/a Section 8) 
Waiting List through July 31, 2019, as recommended by the Housing Commission. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Addendum to the Preconstruction Agreement 
for Primary Road Project with the Iowa Department of Transportation relative to the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

19. Resolution setting February 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY20 Budget for 
the City of Cedar Falls. 

20. Resolution setting February 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
Zoning District. 

21. Resolution setting March 4, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of 
private property for said project. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

22. Allow Bills and Payroll of February 4, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

2



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 21, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52160 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of January 7, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52161 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 9, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2019-
FY2024 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). It was then moved by Wieland 
and seconded by Green that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52162 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Capital Improvements Program. Upon being advised that there was 
one written communication on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 
Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
Capital Improvements Program, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
52163 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,399, 

approving and adopting the FY2019-FY2024 Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP), be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Darrah 
and responses by Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, 
Community Development Director Sheetz and City Administrator Gaines, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,399 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52164 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,400, 

declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to 
reimburse the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection with 
specified projects, be adopted. Following a clarification by Finance and Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,400 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52165 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 11, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Place to Play 

3



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Playground Project. It was then moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52166 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Municipal 
Operations and Programs Director Ripplinger commented briefly. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed plans, etc., 
the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51967 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,401, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Place to Play Playground Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,401 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52168 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 11, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Street 
Construction Project. It was then moved by Green and seconded by Miller that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52169 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Principal 
Engineer Schrage provided a brief explanation and responded to questions by 
Councilmembers Blanford and Kruse. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak either for or against the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52170 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,402, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2019 Street Construction Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,402 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52171 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Wieland that Ordinance #2935, 

amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located to the north of Arbors Drive and west of Richard Road from A-1, 
Agricultural District, and placing the same in R-1, Residence District, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 

4



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

52172 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 
recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
Receive and file the resignation of Robert Frederick as a member of the Civil 
Service Commission. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 7, 2019 relative 
to the following items:  
a) FY19-24 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) - Joint Meeting with Planning & 
Zoning Commission.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
certified lists for the following positions:  
a) Civil Engineer I.  
b) Public Works & Parks Supervisor. 

  
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) Panchero's Mexican Grill, 6421 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal.  
 b) Hy-Vee Tasting Room, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 

renewal.  
 c) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - renewal. 
 

    Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52173 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,403, approving and authorizing execution of two leases relative to 
property vacated by the 2008 flood buyout programs. 
 
Resolution #21,404, approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase 
Agreements and one Tenant Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting 
two Owner's Temporary Grading Easements for Construction, in conjunction with 
the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,405, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed for the purchase 
of 73.65 acres, more or less, of real estate owned by Artesian Earthworks, LLC 
relative to expansion of the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 
 
Resolution #21,406, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed for the purchase 
of 126.07 acres, more or less, of real estate owned by Lois Rieger, John Rieger, 
Rick Rieger and Steven Rieger relative to expansion of the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. 
 
Resolution #21,407, supporting a Workforce Housing Tax Incentive Program 
(WHTIP) application to be submitted to the Iowa Economic Development 
Authority, and supporting the contract with State Street Mixed Use II LC. 
 

5



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Resolution #21,408, setting February 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Walnut Street Box 
Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and to 
authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,403 through #21,408 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52174 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the bills and payroll of 

January 21, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52175 - Councilmember Kruse commented about his snow plow ride along experience 

and expressed appreciation to the Public Works & Parks Division on their work. 
 
 On behalf of Black Hawk County Health, Councilmember Green announced the 

Cedar Falls Recreation Center will have Radon Testing Kits available for $10 on 
January 23rd from 11am-1pm for Radon Awareness Month. 

 
 Northern Iowa Student Liaison Jacob Madden made a statement on behalf of the 

Northern Iowa Student Government recognizing Martin Luther King Jr. Day and 
the University Service and Leadership Council, along with 650 volunteers, that 
packaged 20,000+ backpacks of food supplies for the Northeast Iowa Food 
Bank. 

 
52176 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green to adjourn to Executive Session 

to discuss Collective Bargaining per Iowa Code Section 20.17(3), following Public 
Forum. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:22 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Brown reconvened the Council Meeting at 7:31 P.M. and stated that 

Collective Bargaining had been discussed but that no further action was required 
at this time. 

 
52177 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:32 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2935 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
OF DIVISION I GENERALLY OF ARTICLE III DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) ZONING, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 
AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE CHANGE IN THE ZONING 

MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE 
 
 

  WHEREAS, the applicant, Panther Farms LLC, has requested a rezoning of 40.62 
acres of land located at the north end of Arbors Drive and the west end of Richard Road 
in Cedar Falls, Iowa from A-1(Agricultural) to R-1 (Residence); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is designated for 
future Low Density Residential and Greenways/Floodplain; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, has recommended approval to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to 
amend said Ordinance by removing the following described real estate from A-1, 
Agricultural District, and placing the same in the  R-1, Residence District, as follows: 

 
A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 
14 WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK 
COUNTY, IOWA. 
 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 
OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
27 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' 

7



ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, 
N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, NORTHEASTERLY 290.97' ALONG THE ARC 
OF A 500.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A 
CHORD BEARING OF N66°54'44"E AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 286.88'; 
THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; THENCE, S0°11'02"E 339.85'; THENCE, 
N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, S0°00'14"W 
1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY 

 
And 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 
interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 
   

WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, 
of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map 
of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part 
of said Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and 
such hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 
 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 
14 WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK 
COUNTY, IOWA. 
 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27 TO 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 
THENCE, N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, 
NORTHEASTERLY 290.97' ALONG THE ARC OF A 500.00' RADIUS CURVE, 

8



CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N66°54'44"E 
AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 286.88'; THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; THENCE, 
S0°11'02"E 339.85'; THENCE, N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST 
LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 
THENCE, S0°00'14"W 1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY 
 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1, Agricultural District and added to the 
R-1, Residence District. 

 
Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same 

is hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in 
R-1, Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map 
of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, 
of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 
repealed and hereby re-enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order 
that the same shall apply to and include the change hereby made in the zoning map of 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
INTRODUCED:     January 7, 2019    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   January 7, 2019    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  January 21, 2019    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:          

 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

January 21, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:45 p.m. on January 21, 2019, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, Frank 
Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David Wieland.  Staff 
members attended from all City Departments.  John Haldeman from Snyder and Associates, 
Tom Nelson with the Waterloo Courier, and other members of the community also attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, West 1st 
Street Reconstruction Project Update.  David Sturch, Planner III, stated this bid letting for this 
project will be next month and he introduced John Haldeman from Snyder and Associates.  Mr. 
Haldeman stated this project design started in 2013.  He reviewed the project design noting 
public utilities will be updated during the project and overhead lines will be relocated to a joint 
utility trench.  He also stated the railroad crossing in the 600 block on 1st Street will be 
reconstructed.  Mr. Haldeman stated the project will be completed in three phases; (1) Walnut 
to Franklin (CY2019); (2) Walnut to Francis (CY2020); and (3) Francis to West Hudson Road 
(CY2021).  He explained there is a bonus to the contractor if deadlines are met each season of 
construction.  He stated there will be one bid letting and one contractor for all three phases of 
construction.  He reviewed design configuration.  He reviewed the bid letting calendar and 
stated public information meetings will be held.  Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  
Staff stated project updates will be on the City’s website.  

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda Amendments to the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District.  Karen Howard, Planning and Community Development 
Manager stated limited code amendments are being developed, which will define and establish 
design and parking standards for mixed use buildings in the College Hill Business District.  She 
stated the parking would be defined as one stall per bedroom for dwelling units in mixed-use 
buildings and for consistency purposes, also for multiple dwelling buildings in the College Hill 
Overlay District, along with some clean-up of terms.  She stated a public hearing will 
scheduled for the February 18 Council meeting.  Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  
Council discussed a requirement for visitor parking, and a parking study. Jennifer Rodenbeck, 
Director Finance and Business Operations stated a parking study should be completed prior 
for College Hill prior to the end of the University’s term in May.  Ms. Howard noted that the 
amendments are necessary to clarify vague language in the code that is hampering 
development of mixed-use buildings in the College Hill business district and that there is an 
application for site plan approval of a mixed use building that is currently being deferred at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission until these amendments are considered by Council.  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll.  Mark Miller moved to 
approve the bills as presented, Tom Blanford seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  January 31, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

c) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 
Caraway Lane, Class C liquor & outdoor service - adding Class B wine. 

90



        DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

s 

 

 

TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

FROM: Julie Sorensen, Manager of Information Systems 

DATE: February 4, 2019 

SUBJECT: New Job Classification – Video Production Specialist 

Over the past several years Cable TV has found it increasingly difficult finding and 
retaining part-time staff.  In the past five years, 11 of the 22 part-time staff have stayed 
less than one year.  In addition, we had two part-time staff turn in their resignation 
leaving all four of our budgeted part-time staff positions vacant at the end of December. 
Therefore, we asked the city directors to consider replacing three of the part time 
positions in our budget with one full-time position.  This still allows for one part-time 
position in the budget, but we are hoping it will create more stability and lower turnover 
in our department.  
 
The directors agreed to the position and we worked with the consultants to evaluate the 
job class for the appropriate pay band.  Cable TV is funded by PEG access fees and 
franchise fees collected by CFU and Mediacom. This revenue provides for our annual 
budget, including all full-time and part-time staff.  The pay band will be covered by the 
existing budget.   
 
The Full-Time Video Production Assistant position will work a flexible schedule to cover 
our weekly schedule of events.  This staff person is expected to work a 40-hour week, 
with overtime only pre-approved by their supervisor.    
 
Attached you will find the new job classification created for your review and approval.  If 
you have any questions regarding the job classification, please contact Denny Bowman 
or myself.  

 
Attachment:  Video Production Specialist Job Classification 
 

 

CC:  Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

91



JOB CLASSIFICATION 

Job Title Video Production Specialist Job Code 755 

Department Finance and Business Pay Band 8 
Operations 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 2/2019 Adopted 

Amended 

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 

POSITION DEFINITION 

Assist in the production of local government educational and regional broadcast television programming; 
write, direct, produce, edit, and videotape short videos; maintain the bulletin board system with correct 
and valid information; and perform a variety of administrative and professional tasks in support of 
assigned area of responsibility. Shoot, write and produce stories for City News and other shows. Assist 
with multi-camera productions. Oversee Production Assistant I positions and Division operations during 
Video Production Supervisor absence. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXER€1S£D 

Receives direction from the Cable T.V. & Telecommunications Supervisor and Video Production 
Supervisor. 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Operate video equipment for studio and remote productions with the remote production vehicle; 
video tape and direct productions. 

• Set up production vehicle and remote sites for multi-camera productions; prepare studios for 
regularly produced shows. 

• Update computerized playback schedule for cable television station and Public Access. 

• Conduct studio audio mixing, computer graphic composition, script writing, studio lighting, and 
video editing for productions. 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification - Video Production Supervisor 
92



JOB CLASSIFICATION 

• Prepare pages for Bulletin Board, including updating software and graphic design. 

• Serve in technical role for the Information Systems Division using established knowledge of city of 
Cedar Falls policies and procedures. 

• Lead the work of Production Assistant I, contracted individuals, in Division operations; keep Cable 
T.V. & Telecommunications Supervisor and Video Production Supervisor aware of employee 
information and issues. 

• May be required to oversee Production Assistant I positions and Division operations when Video 
Production Supervisor is absent. 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Perform other duties as assigned. 

MINIMlllM SKILLS AND QUALIFllCATIONS 

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 

• Video composition including graphics and audio components. 

• Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 

• Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations. 

• Video equipment, software and procedures for composition and editing. 

• Operation of lighting equipment and lighting concepts. 

• Editing skills on Adobe Premiere, Photoshop and other Adobe Creative Cloud applications. 

• Desktop computer and word processing software systems. 

• Broadcast writing methods. 

• Division's automated channel programming system. 

• City and Division policies and procedures. 

ABILITY TO PERFORM 

City of Cedar Faiis Job Classification -Video Production Supervisor 2 
93



JOB CLASSIFICATION 

• Communicate creatively, clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

• Operate an ENG/EFP style camera, editing equipment, and remote production equipment. 

• Support the policies and procedures of the City and the Division as appropriate. 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GlJIDELINES 

MINIMUM EDUCATION. FORMAL TRAINING & EXPERIENCE 

Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in electronic media, 
communications, television broadcasting, or related field, with a minimum of six months video production 
experience. 

OR 

Bachelor's degree in a major other than that specified above in addition to two years of video production 
experience. 

OR 

AA Degree or equivalent in Digital Media, electronic media or Video Production from technical school, 
college or university, with two years of video production experience. 

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate valid Iowa Driver's License with Class D Chauffeur 
license. 

W<i>RKING €0NDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens and video and 
editing equipment; travel from site to site; work closely with others; irregular work hours; exposure to 
inclement and extreme weather conditions, electrical hazards, dust, and dirt, and working alongside 
moving traffic on roads; irregular working hours. 

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 

Functions of this position require maintain ing physical condition necessary for sitting , standing, or walking 
for prolonged periods of time; bend ing and kneeling; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder 
motions; adequate speech, hearing, and eyesight required; carry ing or lifting items greater than 40 
pounds; climbing stairs or ladders; operation of audio visual equipment and a motor vehicle; general 
manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time. 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification - Video Production Supervisor 3 
94



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 
    M E M O R A N D U M 

Legal Services Division 

  

 

  
 
 TO: Mayor, City Council  
   
 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 
 DATE: February 1, 2019 
  
SUBJECT:  Proposed Changes to Personnel Policies 
 
 
What follows are proposed amendments to personnel policies followed by brief 
explanations of those amendments.  Most of the changes are for clarification purposes 
only, but in a few instances the changes would represent a change from past practice. 

As you know, the City’s Personnel Policies govern all employees except as specifically 
noted in particular policies.  For example, collective bargaining agreements may provide 
for additional or different terms than the Personnel Policies, in which case such 
collective bargaining agreement terms would control. 

Proposed changes are highlighted in red and either interlined for removal or underlined 
for addition. 

Please note that in most cases only part of the identified Policy is included as necessary 
to identify the proposed changes or/and to put the proposed changes into context. 

Given the extent of these changes, it is contemplated that the Personnel Policies 
booklet will be restated and reissued with incorporation of these amendments. 

City Staff recommends that Council adopt a Resolution approving these amendments to 
the City’s Personnel Policies. 

I would be happy to answer any questions.    

 

204:  HIRING/REHIRING 

Comment: 

                            *                                                  *                                                 * 

95



2 
 

          (8)  Former employees who left City employment in good standing may be 
considered for reemployment.  Former employees who resigned or retired without 
proper advance written notice pursuant to the 213:  Termination of Employment, or 
214:  Retirement policy, or who were dismissed for disciplinary reasons will not be 
considered for reemployment.  A former employee who is reemployed will be 
considered a new employee from the date of employment unless the break in service is 
less than thirty days and the employee is reemployed in the same or equivalent 
position. 

Explanation:  This change was intended to address the inconsistency regarding 
employees who return to employment in less than 30 days.   

 

205:  MEDICAL PROCEDURES 

Policy: 

          It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that applicants to whom a conditional 
offer of employment has been extended and current employees may be required to 
undergo medical tests, procedures, or examinations whenever Management determines 
that these are necessary for the safe or efficient operation of the City and/or in 
compliance with Federal regulations. 

Comment: 

 *                         *                         *                                                 

            (5) Medical examinations required by the City will be paid for by it the City and 
must be performed by a physician or other healthcare provider at a licensed medical 
facility designated or approved by the City it. Records of mMedical examinations paid 
for by the City are the property of the City, and the examination records are to be 
treated as confidential and held in separate medical files. However, records of specific 
examinations, if required by law or regulations, will be made available to the employee, 
relevant insurances companies, orand  the employee’s doctor. Nothing in this policy 
should be construed as impacting coverage or payments under the City’s group health 
insurance plan. 

                             *                         *                         * 

            (9)  Unless deemed medically unnecessary or inappropriate by a health care 
professional designated by the City for such purpose, failure for any reason to 
successfully complete a City required examination or evaluation, including all 
associated tests and procedures, shall result in immediate removal from work duties, or 

96



3 
 

continuation of leave from work duties, until successful completion of such evaluation or 
examination.  Unreasonable failure to submit to such examination or evaluation at the 
time and date scheduled by the City shall be considered an unsuccessful completion of 
such examination or evaluation as of the date and time of the scheduled examination or 
evaluation.  Employees may be allowed to use paid benefit time during any absences 
caused by failure to successfully complete such examination or evaluation, at the 
discretion of the Department Director. 

Explanation:  Self-explanatory clarification language.  Also added language making it 
clear that successful completion of City required evaluations and examinations is 
mandatory.  

 

207:  TRANSFER 

Policy: 

             It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that it may, at its own discretion, initiate 
or approve employee job transfers from one job to another or from one location to 
another within the restrictions established by Chapter 400 of the Code of Iowa and 
applicable collective bargaining agreements. 

Comment: 

                            *                         *                         * 

              (7)  Transferred employees will retain their existing overall job seniority.  That 
seniority will be transferred to the employee’s new job at the successful completion of 
the probationary period. 

Explanation:  This change is intended to eliminate seniority as a factor in job transfers 
pursuant to the legislative changes to Iowa Code Chapter 400 in 2017.  This, along with 
the other policies affecting seniority, would be a significant change in management 
prerogative. 

 

208:  PROMOTION 

Policy: 

            It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to hire employees for entry-level 
positions, to provide training and development for employees when necessary, and to 
offer employees promotions to higher-level positions when appropriate.  The City will 

97



4 
 

engage in outside recruitment for promotional positions.  In limited cases, only internal 
recruitment may be an option, such as for re-organizational purposes wherein outside 
recruitment is not necessary. 

Comment: 

                            *                         *                         * 

               (5)  Current employee candidates for promotion will usually be screened and 
selected on the basis of attendance and work records, performance appraisals, and job-
related qualifications including aptitude or achievement tests, continuing education and 
progress toward an advanced degree.  For positions within the City’s Civil Service 
System, candidates must be certified eligible for promotion by the Civil Service 
Commission.  Seniority will be considered if two or more candidates are judged to be 
equally qualified based on merit, work record, and other qualifications.  In addition, 
employees seeking promotion may be required to have a medical examination, 
including a drug test (see 205: Medical Procedures). 

                                *                         *                         * 

                (7)  Seniority and Ppay for promoted employees will normally be the minimum 
pay range for the new position, …. 

                (8)  Seniority will not be a factor for determining transfer, promotion, interim or 
acting status, or layoff or recall, except as required by an applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. 

Explanation:  These changes are intended to eliminate seniority as a factor in 
promotions after legislative changes to Chapter 400 in 2017.  Note that there is included 
a catch-all policy that affirmatively states that seniority is not a factor related to transfer, 
promotion, interim or acting status and layoff or recall.  

 

209:  HOURS OF WORK 

Comment: 

                 (9)  Shift Differential Pay (New):  Non-union police or public safety 
management employees assigned to a police shift shall receive additional 
compensation for hours worked during second and third shifts as provided in the 
collective bargaining agreement for union police shift employees.  Non-union fire or 
public safety management employees assigned to a fire shift shall receive no such 
additional compensation. 

98



5 
 

Explanation:  Stated current practice regarding police/public safety police shift 
supervisors. 

 

212:  LAYOFF AND RECALL 

Policy: 

               It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls that, if it must reduce employment 
because of adverse economic or other conditions, layoffs and recall from layoff will be 
conducted consistent with City requirements, the law, and in accordance with the 
procedures set forth below: 

Comment: 

                                  *                         *                         * 

               (3)  Nonexempt Eemployees within each affected Department will usually be 
selected for layoff in the following order:  

                       (a)  New employees covered under the 206: Probationary Period Policy, 
are to be laid off first; 

                       (b)  Full-time employees are to be laid off based on their length of 
service, provided that the employees who are retained have the demonstrated ability 
and fitness to perform the available work, and are certified eligible for the position under 
the Civil Service rules and regulations.  If after a reasonable time, an employee cannot 
perform the duties of a new job, that employee is to be laid off if that employee is 
ineligible to transfer or “bump” to any other job.  Other employees within each affected 
Department will be selected for layoff based upon needed work and budget constraints.  
Normally, but within management discretion, employees will be laid off based upon 
factors including, but not necessarily limited to, the following: 

                                    i)  Demonstrated current and past performance; 

                                   ii)  Promotion potential and transferability of skills to other 
positions within the Department or Division 

               (4)  Exempt employees within each affected Department will be selected for 
layoff based upon needed work and budget constraints.  Normally, but within 
management discretion, exempt employees will be laid off as follows: 

99



6 
 

                       (a)  Exempt employees whose work generally is of a routine or repetitive 
nature and does not regularly require the exercise of independent judgment are to be 
subject to the same layoff procedure set forth for non-exempt employees. 

                        (b)  All other exempt employees are to be selected for layoff based on 
evaluation of the following criteria: 

                                       i)  Demonstrated current and past performance; 

                                      ii)  Promotion potential and transferability of skills to other 
positions within the Department or Division; and 

                                     iii)  Length of service within the City. 

               (5)  An employee’s length of service is measured from the original date of 
employment with the City as long as there has not been a break in service greater than 
30 days.  Employees with breaks greater than 30 days are credited for their time 
actually worked, i.e., the break time does not get counted unless otherwise required by 
law or collective bargaining agreement.  

                         *                         *                         * 

               (9)  Credit for retirement benefits and seniority will continue to accumulate 
during any layoff of 30 days or less.  Employees laid off for more than 30 days and 
subsequently recalled within one year from the date of layoff will be credited with the 
years of service accumulated as of the date of layoff. 

Explanation:  This also is intended to eliminate seniority as a basis for employment 
decisions, in this case, layoffs and recalls.  It should be noted that essentially the 
distinction between non-exempt and exempt employee layoffs was eliminated and both 
kinds of layoffs are based on performance and potential.  Basically the exempt status 
layoff criteria from the old policy were adopted for both classifications.  

 

213:  TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

Comment: 

               (1)  Employees must give written notice of their intent to resign or retire.  
Failure to give timely written notice of resignation or retirement may result in forfeiture of 
non-vested City benefits, no payment for accrued vacation, and ineligibility for 
reemployment.  Notice requirements for retiring employees are found in 214:  
Retirement. The following guidelines are requested notices of resignation are required, 
unless waived or modified in writing by the City Administrator. 

100



7 
 

                      (a)  Supervisory, managerial, and professional employees Department 
Directors and Division Managers must give at least four weeks’ written notice of the last 
day work duties will be performed; 

                      (b)  Clerical and administrative employees must give at least three weeks’ 
notice; and 

                       (cb)  All other employees must give at least two weeks’ notice of the last 
date that work duties will be performed.  

                           *                         *                         * 

               (4)  At the time of resignation, employees may be allowed to use all earned 
and accrued, earned vacation time and compensatory time for the current year, in order 
to extend their effective termination date.  This practice will be allowed upon approval of 
the Department Director (or City Administrator if a director position) and Financial 
Services Division.  Although vacation which is earned between the last date that work 
duties will be performed and the effective termination date may extend the effective 
termination date, vacation which is accrued during that time may not extend the 
effective termination date, but instead will be paid in a lump sum upon 
termination.Neither paid nor unpaid time off work may be used to satisfy the notice 
requirements set forth above, unless the employee is on approved administrative leave, 
medical leave, disability leave or workers compensation leave at the time of resignation 
or retirement.   

                (5)  Neither paid nor unpaid time off work may be used to satisfy the notice 
requirements set forth in this policy, unless employees are on an approved leave, or as 
approved in advance by the Department Director (or City Administrator if a director 
position) and the Financial Services Division. 

             

Explanation:  The proposed changes are pretty much self-explanatory.  Note that there 
are only two types of notice requirements for resignation under this proposed policy-
Department Directors and Division Managers (4 weeks) and all other employees (2 
weeks).  Also time off work may not be used to satisfy these notice requirements except 
for certain circumstances.  This is to address what has been a concern with some top 
level resignations/retirements in the recent past.  There is no provision for “running out” 
the effective date of termination for resignation.  

 

214:  RETIREMENT 

101



8 
 

Comment: 

                        *                         *                        * 

          (2)  Employees who choose to take normal retirement are requested to give the 
Financial Services Division as much advance notice of their intent as possible, or but at 
least 90 days advance written notice is requiredif at all possible.  Employees who have 
given notice of either normal, or early retirement, may be called upon to help in the 
training of their replacements. 

                    (a)  The notice required in this policy is notice of the last date that work 
duties will be performed. 

                    (b)  Neither paid nor unpaid time off work may be used to satisfy the notice 
requirements set forth in this policy, unless employees are on an approved leave, or as 
approved in advance by the Department Director (or City Administrator if a director 
position). 

                    (c)  At the time of retirement, employees may be allowed to use all earned 
and accrued vacation time and compensatory time for the current year, in order to 
extend their effective retirement date.  This practice will be allowed upon approval of the 
Department Director (or City Administrator if a director position) and the Financial 
Services Division. Although vacation which is earned between the last date that work 
duties will be performed and the effective retirement date may extend the effective 
retirement date, vacation which is accrued during that time may not extend the effective 
retirement date, but instead will be paid in a lump sum upon retirement. 

                    (d)  Failure to give timely written notice of retirement may result in forfeiture 
of non-vested City benefits and forfeiture of severance pay (See 309: Severance Pay) 
and no payment of accrued vacation benefits (See 506:  Vacations). 

Explanation:  The concepts of resignation notice were carried over to retirement.      

 

302:  PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

 Comment: 

                         *                         *                         * 

              (6)  In addition to adding written comments to their performance appraisal, 
employees may request a review.  (Written evaluations are not subject to the grievance 
procedure.)  Written comments by employees shall become part of the performance 
appraisal.  Stage one of the review process shall be with the Division Manager.  Such a 

102



9 
 

request for stage one review shall be made in writing to the reviewing authority within 
seven (7) calendar days from the initial supervisor meeting in which the appraisal was 
discussed.  Stage two of the review process shall be with the Department Director, 
stage three with the City Administrator, and stage four with the Mayor.  All requests for 
review past stage one shall be made in writing within seven (7) calendar days from the 
decision of the reviewing authority at the previous stage.  Failure to meet the deadlines 
established in this policy shall be deemed a waiver of performance appraisal review.  If 
the employee requesting the review is a Division Manager, the review process shall 
begin with the Department Director.   At any stage in the review process, the reviewing 
authority may make notations to the evaluation to address disputed facts or unfair and 
improper administration of the evaluation instrument. 

Explanation:  These proposed changes are designed to establish a time limit for 
challenging performance appraisals.  Also takes the Mayor out of the review process for 
performance appraisals. 

 

306:  ACTING/TEMPORARY POSITIONS 

Comment: 

                         *                         *                         * 

                        (7)  If employment ends for any reason while an employee is serving in 
an interim or acting position, post-termination payment of wages, salary and benefits 
shall be based upon the employee’s permanent position rate of pay and not the acting 
or interim rate of pay.  

Explanation:  Clarification of post-termination benefits for an acting or interim position. 

 

307:  OVERTIME 

Comment: 

                         *                         *                         * 

               (10)  Overtime Extra Pay for Catastrophic Events, and Natural Disasters, and 
other Exigent Circumstances:  In the event there is a catastrophic event, or natural 
disaster or other exigent circumstances that necessitates exempt employees working 
extraordinary hours, overtime extra pay, which may or may not be computed on a time 
and a half basis, may be paid to these exempt employees, upon City Council approval.  
Considerations by City Council will include, but are not limited to, whether the expense 

103



10 
 

of the overtime extra pay is reimbursable by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency or some other governmental reimbursement program as well as the nature of 
the exigent circumstances and the duration of the catastrophic event or natural disaster 
such events or circumstances. 

Explanation:  Added a general category of “exigent circumstances” so that extra pay is 
not limited to only natural disasters.   

 

309:  SEVERANCE PAY 

Comment: 

               (1)  Employees hired on or before July 1, 1983, have the sick leave severance 
program they elected in writing and filed with the Personnel Financial Services Division.  
Non-union employees hired on or before July 1, 1983, have the option to elect the 
formula set forth in Comment #2 by filing a written election with the Personnel Financial 
Services Division no later than June 30, 2004. 

               (2)  Full-time eEmployees hired after July 1, 1983, and before July 1, 1989, will 
be paid for unused sick leave remaining as of their termination date using the following 
formula: 

                        (a)  For the first 90 days of sick leave remaining in the terminating 
employee’s sick leave bank, no severance payment is due. 

                         (b)  For the next 90 through 180 days, the terminating employee will 
receive full payment for days and hours in the employee’s sick leave bank. 

                          (c)  For balances over 180 days, the terminating employees will receive 
payment for one-half of the employee’s sick leave bank. 

                         0 - 720 hours remaining:  No severance pay 

                         More than 720 hours but equal to or less than 1440 hours remaining:  
100% payment for the hours remaining over 720 hours up to a maximum of 1440 hours 

                         More than 1440 hours remaining:  50% payment for the remaining hours  

Examples:       400 hours remaining equals No severance pay 

                        1200 hours remaining equals 480 hours of severance pay: (1200 – 720 = 
480 X 100% = 480) 

104



11 
 

                        2000 hours remaining equals 1000 hours of severance pay: (50% X 
2000 = 1000).                                                                                                            

               (3)  Terminating employees, whose normal work day is less than eight hours, 
will receive severance payments based on the number of hours in their normal work 
day.  A “day” of unused sick leave for 8-hour work day employees is equal to 8 hours for 
purposes of this policy.   

               (4)  Terminating employees, whose normal work day is longer than eight 
hours, will receive severance payments based on an eight-hour day.  A “day” of unused 
sick leave for less than 8-hour work day employees is equal to the hours normally 
worked for purposes of this policy. 

               (5)  A “day” of unused sick leave for more than 8 hour work day employees is 
equal to 8 hours for purposes of this policy.  This would include eligible fire shift 
employees.  

               (56)  Employees hired after July 1, 1989 are not eligible for any sick leave 
severance benefits to be paid to them in cash.  However, effective July 1, 2004, full-time 
employees hired after July 1, 1989 who are non-union, and who have given timely 
written notice of resignation or retirement in accordance with 213:  Termination of 
Employment and 214:  Retirement, shall be eligible to use any sick leave accruals 
remaining after application of the formula set forth in Comment #2 for future medical 
insurance premiums for the employee or employee’s family and, if eligible, the 
employee’s spouse and/or children.  For purposes of this policy the term “medical 
insurance” shall include group health and prescription coverage, but not dental, vision, 
or any other coverage.  Also for purposes of this policy, initial and continued eligibility 
for payment of future medical insurance premiums for the employee’s spouse and 
children is determined in the same way as eligibility for coverage is determined 
according to the terms of the City’s group medical insurance policy in effect at the time 
eligibility is being determined.  Any payments for medical insurance premiums shall be 
made in accordance with any IRS publications and regulations in effect at the time of 
the employee’s severance.  Any payments or reimbursements shall be made in 
accordance with the Accounting and Procedures of the Financial Services Division. 

             (7)  Part-time employees shall be eligible for sick leave severance calculated in 
accordance with the formula set forth in Paragraph 2 above, but such eligible part-time 
employees shall be paid for remaining sick leave in a lump sum cash payment, and not 
payment for medical insurance premiums. 

           (68)  Any sick leave casual day that was earned and accrued within one year of 
termination shall be forfeited upon termination.  Employees are not eligible for any sick 
leave casual day benefits effective July 1, 2004. 

105



12 
 

            (79)  Employees who have completed the probationary period shall receive their 
accrued vacation time benefits on the basis of the number of days accrued on a pro-rata 
basis of time worked during the fiscal year.  However, new employees will not receive 
accrued vacation benefits if they leave City employment prior to their one-year 
anniversary. (see 506:  Vacations) 

             (810)  Non-exempt eEmployees shall receive compensation for any unused, 
accrued compensatory time. 

             (1011)  Any benefit time off which is used in excess of that which is earned or 
accruals accrued at the time of termination shall be paid back to the City by deduction 
from the final paycheck or will be billed to the terminating employee and shall be paid 
back to the City no later than 10 days from receipt of final paycheck. 

             (112)  All severance benefits, of an employee who dies while employed with the 
City, will be paid to the employee’s spouse, or if so directed by the employee in writing 
to the Financial Services Division, to the employee’s estate. 

             (123)  Employees may elect to split their severance payment between two tax 
years or have it held in escrow for payment of benefits as allowed by Federal law and in 
accordance with any plans which may be implemented by the City. 

             (134)  Benefit plan termination options will be discussed with the Financial 
Services Division during the employee’s pre-departure meeting. 

              (145)  Employees may receive a severance estimate once per calendar year 
upon request from to the Financial Services Division. 

              (16)  Employees whose status changes from part-time to full-time shall be 
credited with the sick days earned while part-time.  Employees whose status changes 
from full-time to part-time shall be paid in a lump sum under the formula in paragraph 2 
above if eligible, and such payment shall include sick days earned while working full-
time.  Employees whose status changes from union member to non-union member shall 
be credited with sick days earned while a union member. 

               (17)  Employees shall be required to show reasonable proof of medical 
insurance as required by the Financial Services Division in order to be reimbursed.                        

Explanation:  Most of these extensive changes are for clarification purposes.  In 
particular, the change in Comment 2 is intended to clarify the application of the formula 
to reflect current practice.  The change in Comment 7 establishes a payout for part-time 
employees.  The change in Comment 16 is intended to address severance pay for 
those whose employment status changes. 

106



13 
 

 

401:  AUTOMOBILE, VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT USAGE AND DRIVING POLICY 

Comment: 

            1.  Vehicle Usage in General: 

                          *                         *                         * 

                         K.  Employees must obtain approval from their Department Director to 
use their personal vehicles for approved business purposes.  Upon approval, the 
employee shall be required to sign a waiver related to the use of the employee’s 
personal vehicle for city business.  Employees may be allowed mileage reimbursement, 
if applicable, upon approval by the Department Director (or City Administrator for 
directors).  If mileage reimbursement is approved it will be equal to the Internal Revenue 
Service maximum mileage allowance for use.  If an employee is given a mileage 
allowance, the mileage shall be computed from the point of departure or the employee’s 
work site, whichever is closest to the point of destination.  Employees will not be 
reimbursed for any expenses incurred while driving personal vehicles to and from work.  
Mileage incurred while using the employee’s personal vehicle for health care visits in 
connection with workers compensation, short or long term disability, or police and 
firefighter disability claims, are not considered city business for purposes of this policy. 

Explanation:  This change is intended to clarify that medical mileage is not to be 
reimbursed under this policy.  As an aside, such medical mileage could be reimbursed 
otherwise (e.g. workers compensation medical mileage). 

 

501:  INSURANCE BENEFITS 

                             *                         *                        * 

Comment: 

                             *                         *                         * 

               (5)  Dental Insurance.   Dental insurance is available to all full-time 
employees and their dependents (as defined by plan documents), when required 
minimum participation has been met.  The employee shall pay the full cost of the 
premium via payroll deduction authorized by the employee in writing.  If, for any pay 
period, there are insufficient wages due and payable to the employee to cover the 
premium to be withheld, the employee must submit to the City, not later than the 
employees’ normal payday, the amount of premium owed by the employee.  If the 

107



14 
 

premiums for such dental insurance are increased, or decreased, the employee’s 
premium will change to the new amount. Deductibles and co-insurance payments for 
the employee and dependents shall be paid by the employee.  

Paragraph numbering for Comments 5 – 8 would be changed accordingly. 

Explanation:  Change reflects new Dental Insurance program adopted. 

 

502:  EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) 

Policy: 

           It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide to all eligible City employees 
the benefit of the Employee Assistance Program (EAP), which provides confidential 
assessment and referral services for employees and dependents as outlined below. 

Comment: 

          (1)  Eligibility.   This program is available to all City employees, spouses, and 
other immediate family members of employees. 

          (2)  Services.  Services include professional counseling and consultations for up 
to three (3) 60 minute sessions for each presenting incident or episode (“initial period”). 

          (3)  Confidentiality.  All records of services provided shall be confidential medical 
records and will be maintained by the health care facility and not the City.  Reports to 
management on the utilization of EAP services shall be done on an anonymous basis, 
including only the number of employees and dependents served. 

          (4)  Employee Cost.  There is no cost to employees and dependents served 
during the initial period.  Fees for additional services beyond the initial period shall be 
the responsibility of the employee and/or immediate family member, or as provided in 
any applicable health insurance policy. 

          (5)  Employee Attendance.  Employees will not receive pay for use of the EAP 
program during work hours but employees may use paid benefit time if available.  
Employees are not required to identify the EAP when notifying supervisors of absences 
for such services. 

Explanation:  This Policy was simplified significantly and also clarified.  In this instance 
the old policy was not repeated here—the changes are very extensive. 

 

108



15 
 

503:  HOLIDAYS 

Policy: 

          It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to designate and observe certain days 
each year as holidays.  Eligible employees will be given a day off with pay for each 
holiday observed. 

Comment: 

                              *                         *                         * 

           (7)  Non-union police and public safety management shift employees in the 
Police Division assigned to police shifts will not observe the holidays outlined in 
Comments (1)(a) through (1)(j).  Instead, these employees will observe the same 
number of holidays as “floating” holidays.  However, the total number of such “floating” 
holidays shall not exceed eleven (11) in any fiscal year. 

           (8)  Non-union fire and public safety management shift employees in the Fire 
Division assigned to fire shifts will not observe the holidays outlined in Comments (1)(a) 
through (1)(j).  Instead, these employees will observe seven (7) holidays per fiscal year 
as floating holidays. 

           (9)  Non-union public safety management shift employees shall be allowed to 
observe floating holidays in the same number as provided in the applicable collective 
bargaining agreement, police or fire, to union employees assigned to the same shift as 
the non-union public safety management shift employees.  Allowance for floating 
holidays is calculated or recalculated at the time of shift assignment.  For purposes of 
this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift employees” includes 
battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety 
supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants.  As an example, if a public 
safety supervisor captain is assigned to a fire shift, then the public safety supervisor 
captain is allowed the same number of floating holidays as are provided in the fire 
collective bargaining agreement to union fire shift employees assigned to the same 
shift.  If the same public safety supervisor captain is reassigned to a police shift, then 
the number of floating holidays is recalculated at the time of reassignment to reflect the 
number of floating holidays allowed in the police collective bargaining agreement to 
union police shift employees assigned to the same shift.  Thus, in this example, if the 
fire collective bargaining agreement allows 7 tour day floating holidays then the public 
safety supervisor captain would be allowed 7 tour day floating holidays during the fiscal 
year while assigned to the fire shift, or a pro-rated share thereof depending upon the 
date of assignment.  Upon reassignment to a police shift, assuming the police collective 
bargaining agreement allows for 11 total holidays, then the public safety supervisor 

109



16 
 

captain would be allowed to observe 11 total holidays, or a pro-rated share thereof 
depending upon the date of reassignment, less the number of tour day floating holidays 
observed while assigned to the fire shift, during the same fiscal year.  Use of holidays, 
including floating holidays, shall be converted to hours regardless of the police or fire 
shift to which the non-union public safety management shift employees are assigned.  

          (910)  Floating holidays may be taken by eligible employees any time after six (6) 
months of employment and after receiving approval of the division head manager.  
Floating holidays are pro-rated for eligible employees hired after the fiscal year begins.  
Eligible employees must take floating holidays on or after the fiscal year begins through 
the last day of the same fiscal year. 

               Carryover of floating holidays will not be permitted unless otherwise specified 
by union contract or if an employee is hired during the second half of the fiscal year and 
the employee will not meet the six (6) month employment requirement.  In the latter 
case, the employee will be allowed to take their pro-rated floating holiday after he/she 
becomes eligible to take them, but must take them on or before the last day of the fiscal 
year in which they become eligible to take the pro-rated holiday. 

          (101)  Veteran’s Day is not a City observed holiday:  City will comply with Iowa 
Code 91A.5A as follows: 

                             (a)  Certain qualified veterans, if they otherwise would have been 
required to work on November 11, may be granted time off for that day unless it would 
impact public health or safety or would cause the City to experience significant 
economic or operational disruption.  Such time off shall be without pay, but the qualified 
veteran may use paid benefit time other than sick leave to cover such absence. 

                             (b)  The qualified veteran must provide written notice to the veteran’s 
supervisor of intent to take time off work at least 30 days prior to Veteran’s Day.  If 
requested, the veteran must provide to the City a federal certificate of release or 
discharge from active duty, or similar documentation for determining the veteran’s 
eligibility. 

                             (c)  The City shall notify the requesting veteran at least 10 days prior 
to Veteran’s Day whether or not the requested time off work will be granted. 

Explanation:  Clarified public safety supervisor provisions and added a section.  
Veteran’s Day time off policy revised to conform to statute. 

     

504:  EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE  

110



17 
 

Comment: 

              (1)  Funding limitations may preclude the City from offering any educational 
assistance.  The City reserves the right to alter, modify or discontinue this program at 
any time. 

              (2)  Employees, to be eligible for educational assistance, must have regular 
full-time status and at least one year of service.  Decisions on whether to grant 
educational assistance will be determined on an individual basis.   

              (3)  Eligible employees may be reimbursed only for courses of study which the 
City determines are directly related to the employee’s present job, are required to 
maintain work related licensure or certification, or which will enhance the employee’s 
current work performance or potential for advancement to a position with the City and to 
which the individual has a reasonable expectation of advancing.  In addition, courses or 
programs to be eligible for reimbursement must be offered by accredited institutions of 
learning or individuals, groups or organizations generally recognized as competent, 
authoritative and professional in their course offerings and be required in a degree 
program or as part of professional licensing requirements. 

              (4)  Employees who want educational assistance must receive a positive 
recommendation from the employee’s supervisor and then obtain approval from the 
Department of Finance & Business Operations before enrollment.  Such approval will 
not be granted without a positive recommendation by the employee’s supervisor.  
Supervisors must obtain funding for the assistance before making a positive 
recommendation. 

               (5)  The Department of Finance & Business Operations and supervisors 
normally are to consider the following factors in evaluating requests for educational 
assistance: 

                      (a)  The nature and purpose of the course of study; 

                      (b)  The benefits to be derived by the employee and the City; 

                      (c)  The employee’s level of responsibility and length of service; 

                      (d)  The estimated cost; 

              (e)  Any potential lost time or productivity while the employee participates 
in the program; and 

                       (f)  That adequate funding exists. 

111



18 
 

                  (6)  In order to be reimbursed, the employee must successfully complete the 
course with a passing grade, and if the course recognizes successful completion with 
an acknowledgment, certificate, license or diploma, the same must be attained by the 
employee.  In any case the employee shall be required to provide proof of successful 
completion.  The City may choose to make payment directly to the person or entity 
offering the course rather than reimburse the employee. 

                  (6)  Employee reimbursement for eligible educational assistance will 
normally be based upon the grade received for the course, as follows: 

                       (a)  For a grade of “A”, 100% of reimbursable costs; 

                       (b)  For a grade of “B”, 75% of reimbursable costs; or 

                       (c)  For a grade of “C”, 50% of reimbursable costs. 

No reimbursement will be made for a grade lower than “C”, and 75% of reimbursable 
costs will be made for passing a “pass-fail” course.  Employees receiving 
reimbursement from any outside source, such as the Veterans Administration or 
scholarships, may use the above formula but the City’s portion may not make the total 
exceed 100% of the reimbursable cost.    

                  (7)  Employees may be required to enter into an agreement with the City 
which may impose conditions on reimbursement different than or in addition to those 
contained in this policy, at the sole discretion of the City. 

Explanation:  Clarification of policy.                               

                 

506:  VACATIONS 

Policy: 

               It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant annual vacations with pay to 
full-time and part-time non-union employees, excluding seasonal and special purpose 
employees, according to the guidelines below.  Only full-time employees and part-time, 
non-union employees (excluding seasonal and special purpose) are eligible for vacation 
pay.  The provisions of any applicable collective bargaining agreement shall apply in 
place of the guidelines below. 

Comment: 

               (1)  Definitions.  For purposes of this Policy the following terms shall be given 
the meanings ascribed to them as follows: 

112



19 
 

                       (a)  “accrue” means to accumulate but not yet earn.  Vacation accrues 
based upon the ratio that the number of days since date of hire or the most recent 
anniversary date bears to the total number of days of vacation to be earned on the next 
anniversary date, calculated on a daily basis.   

                       (b)  “earn” means to have available for use all accumulated vacation time.  
Vacation time is earned on the first anniversary after the date of hire, and on each 
anniversary date thereafter as provided in the guidelines below. 

               (12)  Vacation Time Earned:  Unless otherwise specified by Union contract, 
all full-time employees and part-time, non-union employees (other than seasonal and 
special purpose employees) will be granted vacations with pay on the following basis: 

                       Completion of one year of service                            Two work weeks 

                       Completion of six years service                                Three work weeks 

                       Completion of twelve years service                           Four work weeks 

                       Completion of eighteen years service                        Five work weeks 

                       The number of weeks of vacation and the availability of those weeks may 
vary from the schedule above if depending upon any other arrangements are made as a 
condition of employment as approved by the Department Director (or City Administrator 
if a director position).  For employees with any other arrangements made as a condition 
of employment the schedule above shall be adjusted so that an additional work week of 
vacation shall be added to the vacation already granted at the completion of six years, 
twelve years and eighteen years of service, up to a maximum of five total weeks of 
vacation. If a new employee leaves City employment for whatever any reason and prior 
to their employee’s one-year anniversary date, any vacation time taken, but not yet 
earned, by the employee shall be paid back to the City in the form of a deduction from 
their employee’s final paycheck. New employees who leave City employment prior to 
their one-year anniversary shall also not receive any accrued vacation benefits on their 
final paycheck. 

               Part-time, non-union employees’ vacation benefits will be paid earned on a pro 
rata basis based upon the number of hours actually worked in the prior year computed 
as of their anniversary date.  This calculation is as follows:  actual hours worked/2080 
hours per year.  However, the maximum hours worked in the above calculation is 1508 
even if the actual hours worked exceeds that amount.   

               Part-time, non-union employees whose status changes to full-time, non-union 
status shall be granted credit for all years of service in their part-time non-union 
positions for purposes of computing vacation time entitlement above.  Years of service 

113



20 
 

as a part-time, union employee or special purpose/seasonal employee shall not be 
credited for purposes of computing vacation time entitlement. 

               (2)  Fire shift employees:  Fire shift management employees will be granted 
vacation with pay on the following basis: 

                        Completion of one (1) year of service                    Six (6) tour days 

                        Completion of seven (7) years of service               Nine (9) tour days 

                        Completion of twelve (12) years of service            Twelve (12) tour days 

                        Completion of twenty (20) years of service            Fifteen (15) tour days  

               (3)  Accrued Vacation Time Payment:  Vacation time earned will be figured 
on the basis of the employment year and shall include the total straight paid time the 
employee has worked for the City since the date of last employment anniversary. 
Unless otherwise specified in a Union contract, when an employee has completed the 
probationary period and has passed their employee’s one year anniversary date, but 
employment with the City is terminated for any reason, said employee shall be 
compensated for earned but unused vacation time as well as accrued vacation time on 
the basis of the number of vacation days accrued as of the termination dateon  a pro-
rata basis of time during the employment year. However, employees who fail to give 
timely notice of resignation or retirement shall may not receive compensation for 
accrued vacation time.  Military duty will be figured as working time for calculating 
vacation accrual.  (See 707:  Military Leave.)  Employees may not use accrued, but 
unearned, vacation time prior to their anniversary date except when special 
circumstances warrant and as approved by the Division Manager and Department 
Director (or City Administrator if a director position).  The City’s Risk Management 
committee may also approve the use of accrued, but unearned vacation time. 

               New Comment (4)  Non-union public safety management shift employees shall 
accrue and earn vacation in the same manner as provided in the applicable collective 
bargaining agreement, police or fire, to union employees assigned to the same shift as 
the non-union public safety management shift employees.  Vacation accrual and 
earning is calculated or recalculated at the time of shift assignment.  For purposes of 
this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift employees” includes 
battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety 
supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants.  As an example, if a public 
safety supervisor captain is assigned to a fire shift, then the public safety supervisor 
captain accrues and earns vacation the same as provided in the fire collective 
bargaining agreement to union fire shift employees assigned to the same shift.  If the 
same public safety supervisor captain is reassigned to a police shift, then vacation is 

114



21 
 

recalculated at the time of reassignment to reflect vacation accrued and earned by 
union police shift employees assigned to the same shift.  Thus, in this example, if the 
fire collective bargaining agreement grants 6 tour days of vacation at the completion of 
6 years of service then the public safety supervisor captain would be granted 6 tour 
days of vacation upon the completion of 6 years of service to be used during the 
employment year while assigned to the fire shift.  Upon reassignment to a police shift, 
assuming the police collective bargaining agreement grants 3 work weeks of vacation at 
the completion of 6 years of service, then the public safety supervisor captain would be 
granted 3 work weeks of vacation, or a pro-rated share thereof depending upon the date 
of reassignment, less the number of tour days of vacation taken while assigned to the 
fire shift, during the same employment year.  Use of vacation shall be converted to 
hours regardless of the police or fire shift to which the non-union public safety 
management shift employees are assigned. 

The only exception to this policy is that for non-union public safety management shift 
employees assigned to a police shift, four work weeks of vacation shall be granted after 
twelve years of service, and not after eleven years of service as provided in the police 
collective bargaining agreement.  

             (45)  Vacation Requests:  Employees will request vacation periods giving a 
first and second choice.  Division Managers or Department Directors will respect wishes 
of the employees insofar as needs of the City and service will permit.  Division seniority 
shall govern in the choice of vacation periods, provided such choice has been exercised 
between January 1st and March 30th annually.  Vacations shall be limited to one-week 
increments unless otherwise approved by the Department Director.  

               (56)  Vacation Accumulation:  Vacation time shall not accumulate from year 
to year and annual leave must be used by the end of the employment year following the 
anniversary date on in which it was earned, unless the application for vacation has been 
refused or the extension is approved as provided in Comment (67). 

                (67)   Vacation Carryover Guidelines: 

                          *                         *                         * 

                (78)  Maximum Paid Vacation Periods.  The maximum paid vacation leave 
an employee can take at any time cannot exceed five (5) times the number of workdays 
in their employee’s workweek. 

                 (89)  Minimum Vacation Requirements.  Vacation for periods of less than 
one-half (1/2) hour or as established by department policy, shall not be granted. 

115



22 
 

                 (910)  Approval of Vacation.  Requests for vacation days shall be submitted 
in writing to the Department Director or Division Manager and approved at least twenty-
four (24) hours prior to the beginning of the vacation unless mutual agreement has been 
reached between the employee and the Department Director.   

Explanation:  I included more of this policy for review so that the policy can be 
understood in context, particularly considering the confusion related to terms.  I have 
included a definition section as related to the terms “earned” and “accrued” to hopefully 
eliminate the confusion.  Also clarified that accrued vacation benefits are lost at 
termination unless timely notice of termination is given.  A separate public safety 
supervisor vacation policy was added.  Other changes made to reflect current practice. 

 

507:  EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 

Policy: 

          It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to support a wellness/wellbeing program 
with related activities for full-time and year-round permanent part-time employees, 
reserves/volunteers, elected officials, and retirees enrolled in the City’s health plan.  The 
City recognizes that effectively serving the community depends in part upon the 
wellbeing of the above individuals. 

Comment: 

          (1)  The City has authorized the formation of a City wellness committee whose 
mission is to provide opportunities and programs for employees to engage in activities 
that promote wellness and wellbeing.           

          (2)  Certain individuals may be offered reduced rates on annual membership fees 
to the Cedar Falls Recreation Center and passes to other City sponsored fitness 
activities.  Such reduced rates must be approved on an annual basis.  These individuals 
are as follows: 

                  a)  Full-time employees (individual and family) 

                  b)  Elected officials (individual and family) 

                  c)  Police Reserves who have served the City for at least one year with no 
break in service and who meet departmental work requirements (individual and family) 

                  d)  Part-time employees who work 20 hours or more per week year-round 
(individual and family) 

116



23 
 

                  e)  Retirees enrolled in the City’s health plan in good standing (individual 
only unless family members are also enrolled in the retiree’s health plan, in which case 
family is also eligible)   

          (3)  Reduced rates on influenza immunizations and health screenings may be 
offered from time to time to these eligible individuals.  

Explanation:  New section to account for City wellness program. 

 

602:  EMPLOYEE SAFETY 

Comment: 

                           *                         *                         * 

               (4)  The City will provide special clothing or equipment, or reimburse for it, 
when such clothing or equipment is required by law or by City policy.  Employees are 
responsible for the proper use and maintenance of such clothing and equipment. 

                                             (a)  Safety Shoes.  The City will provide OSHA or ANSI 
approved safety shoes for all full-time employees in all classifications where safety 
requires their use, as determined by their department director, in the following manner.  
On initial hiring and as needed thereafter, each employee will be provided with a 
purchase order along with a list of approved vendors from whom safety shoes may be 
purchased,  The total cost of safety shoes to the City, shall not exceed one-hundred 
forty dollars ($140).  The cost of such purchases shall be in the same amount as 
established in the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City and Teamsters 
Union Local No. 238 (Park and Public Works Divisions) that applies as of the date of 
purchase. 

                                             (b)  Safety Glasses.  Employees working in areas where 
safety glasses are required will be reimbursed the cost of purchasing safety glasses on 
the following basis:  for single vision safety lenses, frames and fitting, a maximum of 
$50.00; and a maximum of $60.00 for trifocal safety lenses, frames and fitting. in the 
same amount as established in the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City 
and Teamsters Union Local No. 238 (Park and Public Works Divisions) that applies as 
of the date of purchase.  The cost of examination and prescriptions will be borne by the 
employee. 

Explanation:  Self-explanatory.  Also by use of this language the City will not be required 
to update the personnel policy with every change of union contract.  If these items are 
no longer reimbursed under the union contract, then the policy will need to be amended.  

117



24 
 

 

603:  SMOKING 

Comment: 

                           *                         *                         * 

               (4)  A “vapor product”, as that term is defined in Iowa Code Section 
453A.1(28), shall not be used inside any city owned or occupied building or within 25 
feet from any entrance to any such building, or in or on any city owned or leased vehicle 
or equipment. 

Explanation:  This change is to implement the “vaping” policy approved by Risk 
Management. 

 

607:  MAINTENANCE OF WORK AREAS 

Comment: 

                         *                         *                         * 

                (5) 

(n)  Use of scented candles, air fresheners, room deodorizers or   
similar products in the work area, or in company owned vehicles, is 
prohibited unless approved by the employee’s supervisor. 

Explanation:  In addressing the fragrance policy it was decided to specifically prohibit 
odor causing items in the workplace that are not worn by the person. 

 

701:  ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY 

Comment: 

                            *                         *                         * 

               (5)  Employees generally are expected to report to work during inclement 
weather conditions if the City does not declare an emergency closing.  If the City does 
declare an emergency closure, employees shall not report to work, unless directed to do 
so by their Division Manager or Department Director.  If employees have already 
reported to work when the emergency closure is declared, then employees shall receive 
pay for the hours worked prior to closure.  Employees shall not receive pay for hours 

118



25 
 

that had been scheduled but not worked due to the closure.  Permission may be 
granted to employees by the Division Manager or Department Director to continue 
working after emergency closure as circumstances require.  Nonexempt employees 
who are unable to report to work or wish to leave work early because of weather 
conditions may be granted…. 

Explanation:  Clarification of policy regarding pay after emergency closure of City 
offices.  

 

704:  LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Policy: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant employees extended leaves of absence 
under certain circumstances.  Except as stated below, employees will not receive 
compensation during a leave of absence. 

Comment: 

     (1)  Family and Medical Leave:  The City will comply with the provisions of the     
federal Family and Medical Leave Act (hereinafter referred to as “FMLA”).  The 
Appendix to this policy outlines the FMLA’s requirements, including the rights 
and obligations of employees, notification requirements, and the City’s 
obligations. 

General Provisions: 

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act, the City will grant unpaid family 
and medical leave to eligible male and female employees for up to twelve (12) weeks 
per twelve (12) month period for any one or more of the following reasons:    

                           *                         *                         * 

Medical and Military Certifications and Return to Work Authorization 

                           *                          *                        * 

For an employee’s own medical leave, the City may also require a second or third 
opinion at the City’s expense, and periodic reports on the employee’s status, intent to 
return to work and a fitness-for-duty report to return to work will be required.  A “Notice 
of Intention to Return From Leave” form must be completed and returned  A release to 
duty from the employee’s health care provider must be provided to the Financial 
Services Division prior to returning to work, with medical certification from the 

119



26 
 

employee’s health care provider that the employee can return to work.  If a fitness-for-
duty appointment is deemed necessary by the City based on position duties, the 
employee will be asked to have a fitness-for-duty examination by a health care provider 
selected by the City, at the City’s expense. 

                           *                         *                         * 

Response To Employees: (only added underline and colon) 

                           *                         *                         * 

Return to Work: 

An employee returning from leave taken under this provision is entitled to return to the 
position held when the leave began, if that position is vacant.  If the position is not 
vacant, the employee must be returned to an equivalent position with equivalent 
benefits, pay and conditions.  Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours 
advance notice of their return to work after such leave, unless this requirement is 
waived by the employee’s supervisor and by the Financial Services Division. 

Workers Compensation and Police/Fire Disability: 

Employees who are on workers compensation leave or police/fire disability leave shall 
be required to use FMLA leave concurrently with such other leave.    

                         *                         *                         * 

        (2) Other Leaves of Absence:   Employees generally are eligible for leaves of 
absence if they have completed at least one year twelve months of service, or as 
specified by law.  The granting and duration of each leave of absence and the 
compensation received by the employee, if any, during the leave of absence will be 
determined by the City in conjunction with applicable federal and state law and in 
accordance with the City’s best interest.  The following types of leaves will be 
considered: 

               (a)  Pregnancy and other sick leave not covered under FMLA:  Pregnant 
employees who are not eligible for FMLA leave shall be granted a leave of absence for 
the period that the employee is disabled because of pregnancy, childbirth or other 
related medical conditions, or for eight weeks as provided by Iowa law, whichever is 
less.  Similarly, employees who are sick or injured may be granted a leave of absence if 
they do not otherwise qualify for FMLA leave if work conditions and other circumstances 
permit as determined by management.  The length of any leave will be governed by 
individual circumstances.  In all cases, medical certification verifying that the employee 
is unable to reasonably perform the duties of employment will be required. 

120



27 
 

               (b)  Other sick leave not covered under FMLA: See Policy 706:  Sick Leave 

               (bc)  Personal Leave of Absence 

               (cd)  Military Leave of Absence 

               (de)  Educational Leave of Absence 

               (ef)  Public Service Office Leave of Absence: Employees who want to accept 
temporary employment in federal or state government or with an organization devoted 
to community service may be granted a public service leave of absence.  Employees 
who are candidates for municipal, county, state, or federal office shall be granted leave 
upon request for the period from 30 days or less prior to a contested primary, special or 
general election, until the day after the election. Employees who are elected or 
appointed to public office shall be granted leave for such public office upon request. 
Public office leaves of absence shall be without pay.     

                (fg)  Bereavement Leave:  Full-time and permanent part-time employees may 
be allowed up to five (5) working days absence with pay in case of the death of a 
member of the employee’s immediate family.  For the purpose of this policy “immediate 
family” includes the employee’s spouse, brother, sister, father, mother, children, step 
parent, step children, step brother, step sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, and any person residing in the employee’s household.  

In the event of the death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent or grandchild of 
the employee or the employee’s spouse, the employee is allowed up to three (3) 
working days absence with pay. 

Bereavement leave absences are intended to include all travel.  However, in 
circumstances involving unusually long traveling distances, department directors may 
extend bereavement absences up to three (3) additional days with pay. 

To qualify for bereavement leave pay, an employee must be employed with the City for 
six (6) months from the date of employment preceding the first day of bereavement 
leave, and be eligible to receive regular earnings immediately preceding and following 
the bereavement period. 

A Division Manager may approve bereavement leave for employees with less than six 
months of tenure. 

New unnumbered paragraph:  Non-union public safety management shift employees 
shall be allowed bereavement leave in the same number as provided in the applicable 
collective bargaining agreement, police or fire, to union employees assigned to the 
same shift as the non-union public safety management shift employees.  Allowance for 

121



28 
 

bereavement leave is calculated or recalculated at the time of shift assignment.  For 
purposes of this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift employees” 
includes battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety 
supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants.  As an example, if a public 
safety supervisor captain is assigned to a fire shift, then the public safety supervisor 
captain is allowed the same bereavement leave as provided in the fire collective 
bargaining agreement to union fire shift employees assigned to the same shift.  If the 
same public safety supervisor captain is reassigned to a police shift, then bereavement 
leave is recalculated at the time of reassignment to reflect the bereavement leave 
granted in the police collective bargaining agreement to union police shift employees 
assigned to the same shift.  Thus, in this example, if the fire collective bargaining 
agreement allows 5 calendar days of bereavement leave for the death of a spouse then 
the public safety supervisor captain would be allowed 5 calendar days of bereavement 
leave for the death of a spouse while assigned to the fire shift.  Upon reassignment to a 
police shift, assuming the police collective bargaining agreement allows for one work 
week of bereavement leave for the death of a spouse, then the public safety supervisor 
captain would be granted one work week of bereavement leave for the death of the 
employee’s spouse, less the number of calendar days of bereavement leave taken 
while assigned to the fire shift.  Use of bereavement leave shall be converted to hours 
regardless of the police or fire shift to which the non-union public safety management 
shift employees are assigned.  

              (gh)  Workers Compensation:  Employees who are injured in the course of their 
employment with the City shall receive benefits and leave in accordance with Iowa 
Code Chapter 85 or as allowed under Risk Management Policy 2012-009.  

               (i)  Police/Fire Disability Leave:  Eligible public safety department personnel 
may be granted leave for duty related conditions in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 
411. 

             (5)  Use of paid benefit time and other benefits while on leave: 

                            a.  Every employee on a sick leave or family care leave of absence 
will be required to use all accrued floating holidays, vacation, compensatory time, sick 
leave/casual days, and sick days while on leave.  Earned benefit time shall be used until 
exhausted prior to the use of accrued, but unearned vacation.  If all benefit time has 
been exhausted, the employee may be subject to termination of employment.  

                           b.                 i.  Emergency response eException:  Employees who 
require a medical absence for an injury arising out of service as a volunteer fire fighter 
or emergency medical responder during a period of an emergency response as defined 
in Iowa Code Section 55.2 may choose to take the medical leave as unpaid up to a 

122



29 
 

maximum of twelve (12) weeks; and shall not be required to use accrued paid leave 
(sick, vacation or comp time) for medical absence as a result of the injury.  After twelve 
(12) weeks of unpaid leave the employee shall be required to take paid benefit time as 
defined in this section.  The employee shall still be required to follow all other policies 
and rules of the City related to medical leave and FMLA.   

                                   Employees who take leave following childbirth may use paid sick 
leave first for the “initial physical recovery period” defined as follows:  eight weeks for a 
mother and one week for a father unless there are medical complications as certified by 
a medical provider.  The mother or father may use other paid or unpaid leave to 
complete the 12 weeks of FMLA leave if desired.  The leave, after the initial physical 
recovery period noted above, must be used in the following order:  all remaining 
accrued floating holidays; all sick leave/casual days; all compensatory time; all accrued 
and earned vacation; any additional sick leave remaining and then all accrued unearned 
vacation since the employee’s last anniversary date. Thereafter, any leave remaining to 
complete the twelve (12) weeks shall be unpaid.  Exceptions to this order may be 
granted under certain circumstances. 

               c.  Employees who take family medical leave for their own serious health 
condition or for the serious health condition of a parent, spouse or child, may exhaust 
accrued paid leave in any order they choose.  

               db.   Employees who are covered by the City’s disability or workers 
compensation insurance, and are therefore already receiving compensation, may not 
use any other paid leave. 

               ec.  Every employee on a personal or educational leave of absence will be 
required to use all compensatory time, accrued floating holidays and vacation days 
while on leave.  Earned benefit time shall be used until exhausted prior to the use of 
accrued, but unearned vacation.    

               fd.  Employees on a public service leave of absence may choose whether to 
use compensatory time, accrued floating holidays and accrued vacation days while on 
leave as provided for in Iowa Code Chapter 55.  Employees who are candidates for 
public office must use earned paid benefit time during the public service leave of 
absence. Employees who are elected or appointed to a position entitling them to a 
public service leave of absence may, if they choose, use earned paid benefit time 
during the leave. If earned paid benefit time is exhausted during a public office leave of 
absence, or if eligible employees choose not to use paid benefit time, the leave or 
remainder of the leave shall be without pay. 

               ge.  The City will provide health insurance and other benefits to employees on 
leave as required by law.  No paid benefit time shall accrueBenefits that accrue 

123



30 
 

according to length of service, such as paid vacation, holidays, floating holidays, and 
sick days do not accrue during periods of unpaid leave and approved paid leave bank 
time off, unless otherwise specified by union contract. 

                hf.   As allowed by law, holiday pay (named and floating holidays) will be 
included for purposes of calculating FMLA time.  Holiday pay (named and floating 
holidays) will be included for purposes of calculating FMLA leave time, unless prohibited 
by law. 

                 g.   Policies related to required use and carry over of paid benefit time shall 
apply when employees are on leaves of absence.   

          (6)  Employees returning from a leave of absence will be reinstated to their same 
job or to an equivalent job with equivalent status and pay, if required by law.  
Employees who have taken personal, educational or public service leave cannot be 
guaranteed employment upon expiration of leave.  Employees returning from a sick 
leave must may be required to provide certification of their ability to perform the 
essential functions of their job, with or without reasonable accommodation and may be 
required to complete a fitness-for-duty examination or evaluation with the City’s 
physician.  Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours advance notice of their 
return to work after such leaves, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s 
supervisor and by the Financial Services Division.  …. 

                         *                         *                         * 

           (8)  If an employee fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave 
of absence, including any extension of the leave, the employee will be considered to 
have voluntarily terminated employment. 

           (9)  Application forms are provided at the end of this policy for use with leaves of 
absence longer than two consecutive weeks, other than FMLA leave which requires an 
application form regardless of the length of such leave.  These forms also may be 
obtained from the Financial Services Division.  Application forms, other than for FMLA 
leave, must be completed by the employee and returned to the Financial Services 
Division at least seven (7) calendar days prior to commencement of a leave, absent 
unusual circumstances.   

Explanation:  More was included here than usual in order to make sure that context is 
understood.  Basically these changes reconcile the definitions of “accrue” and “earn” in 
these policies with other policies such as the Vacations policy.  Other changes reflect 
current practice.  Added a long term sick leave provision (non-FMLA).  Amended public 
office candidate and public office leaves of absence to reflect state law.  Clarified non-
union fire shift bereavement leave.  In some places stated that earned benefit time must 

124



31 
 

be used prior to accrued but unearned benefit time and eliminated the paid benefit time 
order of use.  Stated that exhaustion of all paid benefit time could lead to termination of 
employment.  Eliminated mother/father distinction for birth leave because such 
distinction was most likely unlawful.  Added a public safety supervisor section.   

 

705:  COURT DUTY 

Policy: 

          It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant paid leave to full-time and 
permanent part-time  employees for assigned work time lost while serving on jury duty 
or witness duty in accordance with the guidelines below.  Payment for permanent part-
time employees shall be pro-rated based upon the work hours that had been scheduled 
prior to such leave.  Other part-time and temporary employees are not eligible for paid 
leave for court duty. 

Comment: 

               (1)  Court Duty:  If any full-time or permanent part-time employee is called for 
jury or witness duty other than on City matters, … 

          (2)  Procedure:  Full-time and permanent part-time employees must follow the 
procedure below to receive reimbursement. 

Explanation:  Self-explanatory. 

 

706:  SICK LEAVE 

Comment: 

            (1)  Sick Leave Credited.  Sick leave shall be earned by the employee as 
follows: 

                   After first seven (7) days of employment               One (1) day 

                   After thirty (30) days of employment                      One (1) additional day 

                   After each month of employment                           One (1) additional day  

At the end of the first year, thirteen (13) days shall have been earned.  After the first 
year of employment, an additional one (1) day shall be earned for each additional month 
of employment.  There is no limit on the accumulation of sick leave credit.  Upon 

125



32 
 

beginning employment, the employee shall be credited with the first year’s sick leave of 
thirteen (13) days.  If employment is terminated during the first year, any sick leave 
used above the amount earned shall be deducted from the employee’s last paycheck. 

Part-time, non-union employees’ sick leave benefits will be paid on a pro rata basis 
based upon the number of hours actually worked in the prior year computed as of their 
anniversary date.  Part-time, non-union employees’ accrual of sick leave benefits will 
accrue on an annual basis rather than a monthly basis. 

             (2)  Use of Sick Leave.  Sick Leave shall be used only for personal illness, 
personal injury, medical appointments with members of the medical profession, and an 
illness or injury of a member of the immediate family, which includes the following:  the 
spouse, children, grandchildren, also brothers, sisters, parents and grandparents of 
both the employee and spouse. 

              (3)  Sick Leave/Benefit Notification.  In the event of sickness or injury, the 
employee will receive straight time for each work day that said employee is sick to the 
extent of earned sick leave credit; but not more sick benefit per week than employee’s 
pay for a normal work week.  Sick leave is in no way to be construed as additional 
vacation time.  Sick leave shall not be granted unless the supervisor or other persons as 
established by each department has been notified by not later than the starting time of 
the particular workday.  Such notification should include a reason for the absence and 
an indication of when the employee is expected to return to work.  If the supervisor is 
unavailable, the employee must contact the Division Manager or Department Director.  
If the employee is unable to notify the supervisor, Division Manager or Department 
Director, then the employee should contact the Personnel Specialist.  Voice mail 
messages, text messages and emails are initially acceptable when personal contact 
cannot be made with a supervisor, Division Manager, Department Director, or 
Personnel Specialist, but the employee must continue to contact supervisors, managers 
and directors until the employee personally speaks to someone.  Employees are 
required to personally notify unless emergency prevents personal notification.  
Employees are required to provide a telephone number where they can be reached 
when absent from work. 

               (4)  Non-FMLA Extended Family and Medical Leave.  An Employee who is 
sick or injured and unable to work, or who has an immediate family member who is sick 
or injured and requires the care of the employee, which will result in absence from work 
for two consecutive weeks or more may be granted a leave of absence if the employee 
does not qualify for FMLA leave, if work conditions and other circumstances permit.  If 
the need for leave is foreseeable, the employee is required to provide at least thirty (30) 
days advance notice to the employee’s supervisor of the need for leave.  When such 
long term sick leave is unforeseeable, the employee must provide notice as soon as 

126



33 
 

practicable and generally must comply with the City’s normal call-in procedures until 
extended leave is granted.  Approval for such leave must be granted by management 
and by the City’s Risk Management Committee.  An immediate family member for 
purposes of this policy means spouse, child or parent of the employee. An employee on 
extended family or medical leave shall provide as soon as practicable a certification 
from a health care provider stating that the condition prevents the employee from 
performing the essential functions of the employee’s job, or if applicable, supporting the 
need for leave to care for the immediate family member.  The length of any such leave 
will be governed by individual circumstances, but in no event shall such extended leave 
exceed twelve weeks in any twelve month period.  At least 72 hours’ notice is required 
in advance of the employee’s return to work date, unless this requirement is waived by 
the employee’s supervisor and by the Financial Services Division. 

               (45)  Vacation and Sick Leave.  If an employee is scheduled for vacation and 
becomes ill or injured to the extent they must seek medical attention, the employee may 
be allowed to switch vacation leave to sick leave, subject to Department Director 
approval and written documentation from a member of the medical profession. 

               (56)  Use of Paid Benefits After Sick Leave is ExhaustedCredits Diminished.  
Any accrued leave paid time off benefits and vacation credits earned that have accrued 
before the anniversary date of employment may must be used for sick leave absence 
after sick leave credits have has been exhausted.  If any earned paid benefit time 
remains after sick leave benefits have been exhausted, such earned paid benefit time 
shall then be used until exhausted, then accrued vacation benefits may be used until 
exhausted. 

                (67)  Substantiation of Sick Leave.  At the discretion of the department head, 
sick leave covering a period in excess of two (2) working days must be substantiated by 
a written statement from a member of the medical profession, stating the nature of the 
sickness or injury, and that the employee is again physically able to perform their duties 
(See 701:  Attendance and Punctuality and 205: Medical Procedures Policies) 

                (78)  Injury On-The-Job and Return to Work.  Any employee who is injured on 
the job will not be allowed to return to work until the Legal Services Division is 
presented with a written statement from a member of the medical profession setting out 
the facts as outlined in the preceding paragraph stating that the employee is able to 
perform the essential functions of the job as the same may be temporarily modified.  All 
accidents and injuries must be reported to the employee’s supervisor immediately.   

                (89)  Other Injuries/Illnesses and Return to Work.  Employees who have had 
a non-occupational illness or injury will not be allowed to return to work unless the Legal 
Services Division is presented with a written statement from a member of the medical 

127



34 
 

profession stating that the employee is able to perform the essential functions of the job 
as the same may be temporarily modified, depending upon the needs of the position 
and the nature and extent of any activity restrictions.  Any temporary assignments under 
this policy must have the prior approval of the City’s Risk Management Committee.  
Employees may be required to complete a fitness for duty exam by the City’s health 
care provider before returning to work in any capacity.  (See also 704:  Leaves of 
Absence).       

                (910)  Abuse of Sick Leave.  Employees who abuse sick leave shall be 
subject to discipline, up to and including termination. 

               (101)  Sick Leave Accumulation and Accrual.  (See 309:  Severance Pay)  No 
lump sum payment may be made for unused sick leave, except as provided in 309:  
Severance Pay, to qualifying employees. 

                  New Comment (12):  Non-union public safety personnel.  Non-union public 
safety management shift employees shall accrue and earn sick leave in the same 
manner as provided in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, police or fire, to 
union employees assigned to the same shift as the non-union public safety 
management shift employees.  Sick leave accrual and earning is calculated or 
recalculated at the time of shift assignment and only completed months of employment 
are included in such calculation or recalculation.  For purposes of this policy the term 
“non-union public safety management shift employees” includes battalion chiefs, fire 
captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety supervisor captains and 
public safety supervisor lieutenants.  Use of sick leave shall be converted to hours 
regardless of the police or fire shift to which the non-union public safety management 
shift employees are assigned. 

Explanation:  The use of accrued benefit time after the exhaustion of sick leave is made 
mandatory in order to close a perceived loop hole.  Also eliminated the concept of 
“credits”.  Added a long term sick leave provision.  Added a maximum of 12 weeks of 
sick leave per 12 month period, consistent with FMLA.  Added a public safety supervisor 
section. 

 

802:  PERSONAL APPEARANCE OF EMPLOYEES 

Comment: 

                   (4)  All employees are expected to maintain a basic and proper level of 
hygiene, regardless of position within the City.  Excessive use of perfume, or cologne, 

128



35 
 

after shave, lotion, hair spray or other similar products should be avoided in 
consideration of other employees and the public. 

 

805:  MOBILE DEVICE ALLOWANCES 

Policy: 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide for the use of cellular telephones and 
other mobile devices by certain employees and elected officials. 

Comment: 

               1)  CELL PHONES AND OTHER MOBILE DEVICES: 

 

  (a)  This policy applies to cellular telephones and other mobile electronic 
devices capable of voice communication (“mobile devices”).  

 
  (b)  The City recognizes a substantial business reason for the use of 

mobile devices by certain City employees and City officials in the 
performance of their duties. Department Directors will determine which 
employees in their department require the use of mobile devices. It will be 
the responsibility of the Director to justify and budget for the use of mobile 
devices. The City Administrator will determine which City officials will be 
offered the use of mobile devices. All such devices shall be issued on a 
strictly non-compensatory basis. 

 

  (c)  The City will supply a City-owned mobile device to designated City 
management employees and City officials or will provide the 
designated employees and officials with a monthly allowance in their 
paycheck to offset the expense of a personal mobile device. The 
determination of which management employees and officials will be 
supplied with mobile devices and which will be provided a monthly 
allowance shall be made by the Department Director in consultation 
with the Financial Services Division. 

 
                     (d)  As a condition of receiving a monthly allowance for use of a 

personal mobile device or for issuance of a City owned mobile device, 
the mobile number for such device shall be made available to the 
public in any manner the City deems necessary or appropriate. 

 

129



36 
 

                     (e)  Nothing in this policy shall be interpreted to require or allow non-
exempt employees to monitor or use mobile devices for conducting 
City business while off work, unless permission is granted from the 
employees’ supervisor.    

 
 
          2)  MONTHLY ALLOWANCE. 

 
  (a)  The mobile device used will be the personal property of the 

employee or official and therefore the employee or official will be 
responsible for the capital cost of the device and the decision whether 
to carry insurance on the device at the employee or official’s own 
expense. The employee or official, at his or her own expense, may add 
extra services or equipment features as desired. 

 
  (b)  The monthly allowance shall be $35. This amount includes a $5 

monthly equipment allowance as described below. These employees 
and officials must be on call 24 hours, 7 days a week unless on 
authorized leave or vacation. If an employee or official who is provided 
a mobile device allowance chooses to turn the device off during off-
duty hours or chooses to not answer the device, he or she may lose 
the allowance and discipline may occur. 

 
  (c)  Additional specified employees that have been designated by their 

Department Director, that are required to carry a mobile device due to 
the fact that they are heavy daily users, will also receive an allowance. 
This allowance may range from $10 to $35 per month, depending on 
the employee's job requirements. This amount includes the $5 monthly 
equipment allowance as described below. These employees will be 
required to have the device on at all times for City business while at 
work and if on call, 24 hours, 7 days a week. If they do not have the 
device on or choose to not answer the device, they may lose their 
allowance and discipline may occur. 

 
  (d)  The allowance amount shall not exceed the actual cost the 

employee or official is paying for the employee’s or official’s cellular 
service. If the cost is not over $30, the employee or official will only be 
reimbursed up to the actual amount paid. 

 
  (e)  The equipment allowance for each employee or official will be $5 

per month. This equipment allowance can be used by the employee or 
official for the cost of the phone or the cost of accessories (charges, 
belts, clips, etc). 

 

130



37 
 

  (f)  Employees and officials receiving the allowance will be allowed to 
make and receive personal calls on the mobile device since it is the 
employee's or official’s personal property. However, these personal 
calls shall not interfere with work, as already provided by city policy. 

 
  (g)  A cellular telephone authorization form shall be completed by the 

employee and reviewed and signed by the Division Manager (if 
applicable) and Department Director. The completed form shall then 
be forwarded to the Controller/City Treasurer. 

 
  (h)  The allowance shall continue until the Controller/City Treasurer is 

notified in writing by the Department Director to discontinue the 
allowance or at the time that the employee terminates employment 
with the City. 

 
(i)  The employees and officials receiving the monthly allowance must 
notify his or her own supervisor and the Controller/City Treasurer each 
time the mobile device number or mobile device provider is changed. 

 
  (j)  Initially, the employee or official will be required to submit 

documentation verifying the mobile device number and the cost of the 
plan to ensure that the allowance does not exceed the allowance 
amount. If an employee or official changes the device number, he or 
she shall be required to notify Financial Services immediately and 
provide the appropriate documentation. 

 
  (k)  The $35 allowance has been determined to cover the cost of a 

basic plan. On a periodic basis, the Financial Services Division will 
review the allowance amount to ensure that it is a reasonable. The 
allowance will be added to the second payroll of each month. 

 
 
           3)  PROVIDED MOBILE DEVICES 

 
  (a)  Any City owned mobile device issued to City employees or City 

officials shall be used for City business only, and not for personal use 
other than in an emergency. 

 
  (b)  The City shall retain ownership of the issued mobile device, and 

the device may be subject to inspection, forensic examination, recall, 
or confiscation at any time. There should be no expectation of privacy 
whatsoever regarding any information contained on the device by 
those who are issued a City owned device. In addition, any information 

131



38 
 

contained on the device may be subject to an open records request. 
  
  (c)  The employee or official who is issued the device may be 

responsible to reimburse the City for loss or theft of or damage to the 
device that occurs while issued to the employee or official, depending 
upon the circumstances, at the sole discretion of the Department 
Director or City Administrator. 

 
  (d)  Use of the device shall be subject to 806:  Technology 

Resources Acceptable Use. 
 
  (e)  No changes to the operating system, programs, applications, 

service provider or any other changes to the mobile device’s operation 
are allowed to be made to City owned devices without the express 
permission of the Department Director or City Administrator. Generally 
such changes, if any, will be made by or under the supervision of the 
Information Systems Division of the City of Cedar Falls. 

  
  (f)  Issued mobile devices shall be returned to the Financial Services 

Division upon termination of employment for any reason. 
 
Explanation:  New mobile device policy added. 
 
  

809:  DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

Policy: 

          It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that all employees are expected to 
comply with the City’s standards of behavior and performance and that any 
noncompliance with these standards must be modified. 

Comment: 

                             *                         *                         *                                                        

          (8)  Documented reasons and rationale for final disciplinary action imposed on an 
employee resulting in resignation in lieu of discharge, demotion or discharge may be a 
public record. 

          (89)  Probationary employees, and all temporary employees, including seasonal 
and special purpose employees may be terminated at any time without regard to the 
procedures set forth above. 

132



39 
 

Explanation:  This change is to make sure that employees understand that certain 
records could become public records, to reflect legislative changes in 2017.  This 
information is also included in our discipline forms, but this gives prior notice to 
employees who have not faced discipline before.  Also clarified the classes of 
employees who are not subject to progressive discipline.  

 

903:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Policy: 

               It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that employees should have an 
opportunity to present their work-related complaint and to appeal management 
decisions through a dispute resolution or grievance procedure.  The City will attempt to 
resolve promptly all grievances that are appropriate for handling under this policy. 

Comment: 

                              *                         *                         * 

               (4)  The grievance procedure has a maximum of four three steps, but 
grievances may be resolved at any step in the process.  Grievances are to be fully 
processed until the employee is satisfied, does not file a timely appeal, or exhausts the 
right to appeal.  A decision becomes binding on all parties whenever the employee does 
not file a timely appeal or when a decision is made in the final step and the right to 
appeal no longer exists. 

                               *                                            *                                                       *       

                       (c)  Step Three – Within five working days of receipt of the Department 
Director’s response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Grievance Panel.  
The Grievance Panel shall consist of the Mayor, the City Administrator, and all 
Department Directors, or the Department Director’s designated alternate, with the 
exception of the Department Director involved in the grievance.  The Grievance Panel 
will hold a hearing on a date at the earliest convenience of all parties.  The Grievance 
Panel will take the necessary steps to review and investigate the grievance and will 
issue a written, final and binding decision based upon the majority vote of those Panel 
members who heard the appeal.  If the grievance is filed by the City Administrator, it 
shall move directly to Step 4.   

                       (d)  Step Four – Within five working days of receipt of the Grievance 
Panel’s response, the employee may appeal the decision to the Administration 
Committee of the City Council.  The Administrative Committee will hold a hearing on a 

133



40 
 

date at the earliest convenience of all parties.  The Administration Committee will take 
the necessary steps to review and investigate the grievance and will issue a written, 
final, and binding decision. 

                                *                         *                         * 

                        (f)  Closed Session:  The grievance hearings in Step Three and Step 
Four may be closed pursuant to Iowa Code § 21.5(1)(i).  The closed session will only be 
held upon an affirmative vote of either two-thirds of the members of the body or all the 
members present at a meeting.  A closed session may be held only to the extent it is 
necessary to evaluate the professional competency of an individual whose appointment, 
hiring, performance or discharge is being considered when necessary to prevent 
needless and irreparable injury to that individual’s reputation and that individual 
requests a closed session.  

Explanation:  This change removes the Administration Committee from the Grievance 
process.  The Grievance Panel makes the final decision under this proposed policy.  
Also, there is no reason to reference an open or closed session for the Grievance Panel 
because it is not a meeting under the open meetings law.  The employee pursuing the 
grievance would have the same rights as to who may attend the Grievance Panel 
meeting as at any other step of the process.  But the City can choose to keep members 
of the public out of the hearing. 

    

 

 

 

     

                                   

      

            

                

134



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO 

PERSONNEL POLICIES 

 

       WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving and adopting certain amendments to the City’s Personnel Policies; and 

 

       WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interests of the City to approve and adopt said amendments. 

 

       NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said amendments to the City’s Personnel Policies are hereby approved and 

adopted. 

 

       ADOPTED this 4th day of February, 2019. 

 

                                                                                          ________________________ 
                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

  

 

 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



February 1, 2019
1 1 1

City of Cedar Falls - City Hall #REF!

220 Clay Street #REF! #REF!

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 #REF! #REF!

Re: Cedar Falls Public Safety Facility Furniture

One One One

Selected Bid 

Summary Per 

Specified 

Manufacturer Low Bid Amount Bidder Recommendation Comments
Gunlocke 17,711.19$                 Storey Kenworthy accept
Hi5 24,865.00$                 Kirk Gross accept
National Office 8,621.65$                   Kirk Gross accept
Sit On It 11,480.05$                 Storey Kenworthy accept
Source International 18,860.32$                 Office Concepts accept
Steelcase (Office 

Types 1-9) 128,287.50$              Kirk Gross accept
Steelcase (C-5 Amia 

Chairs) 17,805.28$                 Kirk Gross accept
Tuohy 2,334.34$                   Office Concepts accept
Wisconsin Bench $4,722 Storey Kenworthy accept

Total $234,687.57 Total is lower than budget pricing

General Notes

Kindra Christensen, IIDA
Interior Designer

Sincerely,

Attached is the bid tab for your reference.

Please let us know how you plan to proceed. As always, we are glad to meet with you to discuss this in more detail.

Each bidder is a reliable and experienced furniture supplier that has successfully worked on projects for the City of Cedar Falls and/or other 

institutions in the area. We are confident that they will provide the quality of work that the city expects.

In summary, we recommend accepting the bids as indicated above for a total contract amount at $234,687.57

Below is a summary of the bids received at our January 25, 2019 bid opening for CFPS Facility Furniture. The recommendations that follow are 

offered after review with you.

Alternates were included within the bids for task chairs. We are recommending that Alternate 3 for the Allsteel (C-5 Access chairs) is not accepted 

based on the preference of owner from the base bid product.

Alternates were included within the bids for office workstations and storage. We are recommending that Alternate 1 for the Herman Miller  (Office 

Types 1-9) is not accepted based on the differences in components from the base bid product.  We are recommending that Alternate 2 for the 

Allsteel (Office Types 1-9) is not accepted based on the differences in components and preferences of the owner from the base bid product.

We received competitive bids furniture.  The bid amounts are within the expected costs for the work. The total bid price is approximately 15% less 

than the estimate.  

The specification allows the owner to accept furniture bids per manufacturer category, not overall low bid per supplier.

148



DATE:

PROJECT:

PROJECT #:

Budget:

Bidding Company Kirk Gross Office Concepts Storey Kenworthy

Location Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Cedar Falls, IA

Bid Bond 5% $9,250 5%

Addendum No 1 dated 

01.23.1019
x x x

Completed Work By: 6/1/2019

BASE BID $ $0 $ $0 $ $0

MANUFACTURERS
Selected

X

Selected

X
Column4

Selected

X
Column8 Column9

Gunlocke
no bid no bid X $17,711.19

Hi5
X $24,865.00 $25,087.61 $27,802.71

National Office Furniture
X $8,621.65 no bid $9,096.41

Sit On It
$11,840.57 $11,713.85 X $11,480.05

Source International
$19,608.09 X $18,860.32 $19,838.67

Steelcase

(Office Types 1-9)
X $128,287.50 no bid no bid

Steelcase

(C-5 Amia Chairs)
X $17,805.28 no bid no bid

Tuohy
$2,382.46 X $2,334.34 $2,670.31

Wisconsin Bench
no bid no bid X $4,722.24

Alternate No 1: Herman Miller 

(Office Types 1-9)
no bid $124,348.14 no bid

price does not include under cabinet 

lighting (approx. add would be $2800)

Alternate No 2: Allsteel

(Office Types 1-9) no bid no bid $92,831.52

price does not include under cabinet lighting 

(approx. add would be $4500)

Alternate No 3: Allsteel

(C-5 Access Chairs) no bid no bid $16,540.34

Total Per Bidding Company $179,579.43 $21,194.66 $33,913.48

Project Total (Includes 

Lowest Bid Number Per 

Manufacturer):

$234,687.57

BID TABULATION
February 1, 2019

Cedar Falls Public Safety Facility Furniture

17007

$325,000

149



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: January 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

77 Farmers State Bank 1704-1710 W. 1
st
 Street Fee 

Permanent Easement 
Temporary Easement 
Tennant Agreement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 

150



documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1

st
 Street 

reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



Ol
ive

 St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rvElm St

Pa
rk

Dr

Edgewood St

Linda Dr

W 3rd St

Theimer St

W 2nd St

W 1st St

Pine St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Fo
rre

st 
Rd

W 3rd St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ida St

Pe
ar

l S
t

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Iow
a S

t

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

W 4th St

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEll enS t

S Park Rd

Edgewood St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Ba
ke

r D
r

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Crescent Dr

Center St

75
74 6973

68
67

72 66 6571 64 63 62
61

60
59 58

57 56
55

54
52

51
50 49 48 47 46

45
4144

43

252 3 4 5 7 8 299 30 31
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19 20
21

22
23 24

1

42

28

76 70
53

5 6 26 27

77

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Condemnation

237



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council    
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II  
 
 DATE: January 25, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
   Downtown Levee Improvements Project 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 1  
   City Project No. FL-000-1975 
 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Downtown Levee Improvements Project. 
The amount of rainfall in the Cedar River basin was at a historic high in 2018. During the summer months 
of 2018, the Cedar River crested a total 5 times between the months of April-October resulting in delayed 
construction. As introduced during the July 16, 2018 Council Committee of the Whole meeting, work was 
added to the contractor’s scope with the council approved change orders. With the change orders 
substantially estimated and accounted for, the continued observation and administration would be 
increased to account for the additional construction work remaining and construction working days 
allotted.  
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
for construction related services for the Downtown Levee Improvement Project on October 2, 2017.  
Funding for the proposed design work will be provided by the Flood Mitigation grant in the amount of 
$20,588.00. The total project cost, construction and engineering services, remains within the grant 
funding secured for this project.  
 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Downtown Levee Improvements 
Project.  
 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact myself or Chase Schrage.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 

Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 

238



239



240



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: January 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Place to Play Playground 
  Project No. PI-185-3156 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, January 29, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
Place to Play Playground Project. A total of six (6) bids were received, with Peters 
Construction the low bidder: 
 

 
 Base Bid Total Base Bid w/ 

Alternate #1 

Peters Construction $404,938.53 $367,236.53 

Lodge Construction $413,854.25 $368,854.25 

Woodruff Construction $432,899.02 $403,399.02 

Vieth Construction $492,760.00 $452,760.00 

K. Cunningham Construction Co. Inc. $514,809.00 $468,259.00 

 
The cost estimate for this project was $527,526.00. Peters Construction of Waterloo, 
Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $404,938.53, which is 23% below the cost 
estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the competitive bids, we recommend acceptance of the low bid from 
Peters Construction in the amount of $404,938.53 On February 18th, 2019, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  

241



RITLAND+KUIPER Landscape Architects
501 Sycamore Street, Mezz. A
Waterloo, Iowa  50703
(319) 233-8090    Fax (319) 233-9772

BID TABULATION
Place to Play Playground, Cedar Falls, Iowa

Contractor Name #1 #2

Woodruff Construction Y Y Y Y $432,899.02 $29,500.00 $403,399.02 Y

Peters Construction Y Y Y Y $404,938.53 $37,702.00 $367,236.53 Y

K.Cunningham Construction Y Y Y Y $514,809.00 $46,550.00 $468,259.00 Y

Cardinal Construction Y Y Y Y $511,124.00 $34,315.00 $476,809.00 Y

Lodge Construction Y Y Y Y $413,854.25 $45,000.00 $368,854.25 Y

Veith Construction Y Y Y N $492,760.00 $40,000.00 $452,760.00 Y

Bid 
Security 

(10%)

Addenda
January 29, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m.

DEDUCT ALT. 
#1: 

Playground 
Equip InstallBASE BID

Non-
Collusion 
Affidavit

BASE BID 
AFTER 

DEDUCT
Bid 

Status

242



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: January 31, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Street Construction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3153 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, January 29, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2019 Street Construction Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Peterson 
Contractors Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 
Bid Total 

Peterson Contractors Inc. $4,711,475.14 

K. Cunningham Construction Co. Inc. $4,792,521.41 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $4,798,387.18. Peterson Contractors Inc. 
of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $4,711,475.14, which is 1.8% 
below the Engineer's Estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the competitive bids, we recommend acceptance of the low bid from 
Peterson Contractors Inc. in the amount of $4,711,475.14. On February 18th, 2019, the 
Contract, Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  
  
 
 
 

243



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2019 STREET CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  RC - 000 - 3153

BID OPENING: January 29, 2019
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ENGINEERING DIVISION

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 22169.5 $4.75 $105,305.13 $4.75 $105,305.13 $5.25 $116,389.88
2 REMOVAL OF A.C.C. SURFACING S.Y. 22047.0 $4.25 $93,699.75 $3.65 $80,471.55 $4.15 $91,495.05
3 REMOVAL OF A.C.C. SURFACING (MILLING) S.Y. 7243.0 $5.00 $36,215.00 $5.10 $36,939.30 $5.60 $40,560.80
4 REMOVAL OF SEALCOAT SURFACE (MILLING) S.Y. 520.8 $7.00 $3,645.60 $9.05 $4,713.24 $9.05 $4,713.24
5 REMOVAL OF P.C.C./A.C.C. SURFACE (TAPER MILLING) S.Y. 1808.6 $36.50 $66,013.90 $35.35 $63,934.01 $35.35 $63,934.01
6 REMOVAL OF CURB L.F. 616.2 $9.00 $5,545.80 $10.00 $6,162.00 $10.00 $6,162.00
7 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 2110.5 $5.25 $11,080.13 $4.50 $9,497.25 $4.50 $9,497.25
8 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 1102.20 $6.50 $7,164.30 $8.00 $8,817.60 $8.00 $8,817.60
9 REMOVALS AS PER PLAN UNITS 127.75 $500.00 $63,875.00 $500.00 $63,875.00 $500.00 $63,875.00

10 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 2027.0 $5.75 $11,655.25 $5.50 $11,148.50 $5.50 $11,148.50
11 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 8653.0 $10.50 $90,856.50 $10.50 $90,856.50 $10.50 $90,856.50
12 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, UNSTABLE MATERIAL C.Y. 860.3 $11.00 $9,463.30 $10.50 $9,033.15 $10.50 $9,033.15
13 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. 30.0 $30.00 $900.00 $30.00 $900.00 $30.00 $900.00
14 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 5472.7 $60.00 $328,362.00 $41.50 $227,117.05 $41.25 $225,748.88
15 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 8 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 10235.8 $46.00 $470,846.80 $43.50 $445,257.30 $43.25 $442,698.35
16 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TON 1947.9 $100.00 $194,790.00 $110.40 $215,048.16 $110.40 $215,048.16
17 HMA, (ST), BASE, 3/4", PG58-28S TON 2919.6 $95.00 $277,362.00 $107.00 $312,397.20 $107.00 $312,397.20
18 HMA. (HT), SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28H TON 1743.0 $102.00 $177,786.00 $113.45 $197,743.35 $113.45 $197,743.35
19 HMA, (HT), INTERMEDIATE, 1/2", PG58--28H TON 1743.0 $100.50 $175,171.50 $113.45 $197,743.35 $113.45 $197,743.35
20 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 4063.0 $19.30 $78,415.90 $19.75 $80,244.25 $19.65 $79,837.95
21 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 3.5 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 446.0 $28.00 $12,488.00 $27.00 $12,042.00 $26.80 $11,952.80
22 CURB, PCC 8 IN. 2.0 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 170.2 $29.00 $4,935.80 $29.50 $5,020.90 $29.20 $4,969.84
23 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA. 65.1 $250.00 $16,275.00 $250.00 $16,275.00 $250.00 $16,275.00
24 GEOGRID S.Y. 25176.5 $3.30 $83,082.45 $3.25 $81,823.63 $3.25 $81,823.63
25 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 12 IN. S.Y. 25176.5 $14.00 $352,471.00 $12.50 $314,706.25 $12.50 $314,706.25
26 SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS 105.0 $30.00 $3,150.00 $28.50 $2,992.50 $28.50 $2,992.50
27 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 1613.0 $15.75 $25,404.75 $22.00 $35,486.00 $22.00 $35,486.00
28 SOD, PROVIDE AND PLACE S.F. 83770.0 $0.55 $46,073.50 $0.62 $51,937.40 $0.60 $50,262.00
29 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 3000.0 $0.45 $1,350.00 $0.60 $1,800.00 $0.50 $1,500.00
30 WATERING SOD M-GAL 30.0 $200.00 $6,000.00 $175.00 $5,250.00 $160.00 $4,800.00
31 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 2110.5 $37.00 $78,088.50 $42.00 $88,641.00 $46.50 $98,138.25
32 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 831.6 $41.00 $34,095.60 $41.00 $34,095.60 $43.60 $36,257.76
33 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 293.1 $41.00 $12,017.10 $43.00 $12,603.30 $72.25 $21,176.48
34 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING S.F. 324.0 $33.00 $10,692.00 $35.00 $11,340.00 $45.00 $14,580.00
35 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. 5.0 $135.00 $675.00 $275.00 $1,375.00 $250.00 $1,250.00
36 PATCH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 20.0 $225.00 $4,500.00 $150.00 $3,000.00 $150.00 $3,000.00
37 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 1.0 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00
38 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 2.0 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00
39 INTAKE, SW-510 EACH 5.0 $5,500.00 $27,500.00 $7,800.00 $39,000.00 $7,800.00 $39,000.00
40 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH 4.0 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00
41 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH 24.0 $4,800.00 $115,200.00 $5,000.00 $120,000.00 $5,000.00 $120,000.00
42 INTAKE, SW-402 7' x 7' ID. EACH 1.0 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00
43 INTAKE, RA-3 TOP & INSERT EACH 2.0 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
44 INTAKE, RA-5 TOP & INSERT EACH 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00
45 INTAKE, RA-6 Top & Insert EACH 1.0 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
46 INTAKE, SW-502, 60" DIA. TOP EACH 2.0 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00
47 INTAKE, RA-3 TOP EACH 2.0 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00
48 INTAKE, RA-5 TOP EACH 2.0 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,400.00 $2,800.00 $1,400.00 $2,800.00
49 INTAKE, RA-3 INSERT EACH 5.0 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00
50 INTAKE, RA-5 INSERT EACH 1.0 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00
51 INTAKE, RA-6 INSERT EACH 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00
52 INTAKE, TYPE B INSERT EACH 3.0 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,300.00 $3,900.00 $1,300.00 $3,900.00
53 INTAKE, TYPE D INSERT EACH 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00
54 MANHOLE, ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 15.0 $750.00 $11,250.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00
55 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401 EACH 2.0 $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00
56 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301 EACH 12.0 $5,500.00 $66,000.00 $5,500.00 $66,000.00 $5,500.00 $66,000.00
57 SEWER, STORM, 15 IN. PLASTIC, PERFORATED L.F. 1817.0 $53.50 $97,209.50 $53.00 $96,301.00 $53.00 $96,301.00
58 SEWER, STORM, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 273.0 $55.00 $15,015.00 $55.00 $15,015.00 $55.00 $15,015.00
59 SEWER, STORM, 18 IN. PLASTIC PERFORATED L.F. 1038.0 $59.00 $61,242.00 $58.00 $60,204.00 $58.00 $60,204.00
60 SEWER, STORM, 18 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 189.0 $62.00 $11,718.00 $58.00 $10,962.00 $58.00 $10,962.00
61 SEWER, STORM, 24 IN. PLASTIC PERFORATED L.F. 430.0 $75.00 $32,250.00 $67.00 $28,810.00 $67.00 $28,810.00
62 SEWER, STORM, 24 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 28.0 $75.00 $2,100.00 $98.00 $2,744.00 $98.00 $2,744.00
63 SEWER, STORM, 30 IN. PLASTIC PERFORATED L.F. 743.0 $80.00 $59,440.00 $88.00 $65,384.00 $88.00 $65,384.00
64 SEWER, STORM, 36" PLASTIC, PERFORATED L.F. 308.0 $115.00 $35,420.00 $95.00 $29,260.00 $95.00 $29,260.00
65 SEWER, STORM 48 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 20.0 $125.00 $2,500.00 $170.00 $3,400.00 $170.00 $3,400.00
66 SEWER, STORM 54 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 24.0 $150.00 $3,600.00 $198.00 $4,752.00 $198.00 $4,752.00
67 APRON, CONCRETE 54 IN. (TYPE 2) EACH 1.0 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
68 REVETMENT STONE, CLASS "E" TONS 430.0 $45.00 $19,350.00 $50.00 $21,500.00 $50.00 $21,500.00
69 GRANULAR SHOULDERING, TYPE A TONS 194.0 $20.00 $3,880.00 $32.00 $6,208.00 $32.00 $6,208.00
70 CLEARING AND GRUBBING L.S. 1.0 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
71 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH 1.0 $700.00 $700.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
72 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 600.0 $25.00 $15,000.00 $25.00 $15,000.00 $25.00 $15,000.00
73 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. 8513.0 $9.60 $81,724.80 $10.75 $91,514.75 $10.75 $91,514.75
74 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH 34.0 $300.00 $10,200.00 $300.00 $10,200.00 $300.00 $10,200.00
75 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH 111.0 $280.00 $31,080.00 $275.00 $30,525.00 $275.00 $30,525.00
76 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. 60.0 $25.00 $1,500.00 $17.50 $1,050.00 $17.50 $1,050.00
77 MAILBOXES, RELOCATE & REINSTALL (PER POST) EACH 13.0 $500.00 $6,500.00 $400.00 $5,200.00 $400.00 $5,200.00
78 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $104,000.00 $104,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00
79 FLAGGERS DAYS 5.0 $600.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $500.00 $2,500.00
80 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 5.0 $300.00 $1,500.00 $175.00 $875.00 $175.00 $875.00
81 SPRINKLER HEADS, REMOVE & PLUG EACH 5.0 $150.00 $750.00 $100.00 $500.00 $40.00 $200.00
82 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED STA. 113.8 $35.00 $3,983.00 $37.00 $4,210.60 $37.00 $4,210.60
83 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED SYMBOLS EACH 7.0 $80.00 $560.00 $60.00 $420.00 $60.00 $420.00
84 INTAKE WELL, SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 43.0 $250.00 $10,750.00 $250.00 $10,750.00 $135.00 $5,805.00
85 INTAKE, SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. 720.0 $15.00 $10,800.00 $6.00 $4,320.00 $4.25 $3,060.00
86 CLEANING OF SEDIMENT FILTER BASINS EACH 43.0 $200.00 $8,600.00 $150.00 $6,450.00 $35.00 $1,505.00
87 SIGN POST, SQUARE TUBING 14 GAUGE 2" GALVANIZED L.F. 165.0 $10.00 $1,650.00 $10.00 $1,650.00 $9.00 $1,485.00
88 RECEIVER, SIGN POST, SQUARE TUBING 12 GAUGE 2 1/4" GALVANIZED EACH 15.0 $30.00 $450.00 $40.00 $600.00 $35.00 $525.00
89 TYPE A SIGNS, ALUMINUM S.F. 81.0 $25.00 $2,025.00 $22.00 $1,782.00 $20.00 $1,620.00
90 STREET SWEEPING HRS. 28.0 $200.00 $5,600.00 $150.00 $4,200.00 $140.00 $3,920.00
91 BASE, CLEANING AND PREPARATION S.Y. 43170.3 $1.10 $47,487.33 $1.10 $47,487.33 $1.10 $47,487.33
92 SAW AND SEAL JOINTS L.F. 22420.0 $5.75 $128,915.00 $6.25 $140,125.00 $6.25 $140,125.00

93 SEWER, SANITARY, 8" TRUSS PIPE L.F. 464.0 $85.00 $39,440.00 $56.00 $25,984.00 $56.00 $25,984.00
94 SEWER, SANITARY, 12" TRUSS PIPE L.F. 1362.0 $100.00 $136,200.00 $62.00 $84,444.00 $62.00 $84,444.00
95 SEWER SERVICES SANITARY, 4" SDR 23.5 L.F. 1080.0 $125.00 $135,000.00 $65.00 $70,200.00 $65.00 $70,200.00
96 PIPE, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 80.0 $60.00 $4,800.00 $55.00 $4,400.00 $55.00 $4,400.00
97 PIPE, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 995.0 $68.00 $67,660.00 $50.00 $49,750.00 $50.00 $49,750.00
98 PIPE 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 2905.0 $55.00 $159,775.00 $56.00 $162,680.00 $56.00 $162,680.00
99 BEND, 4" MJ 90° EACH 6.0 $250.00 $1,500.00 $250.00 $1,500.00 $250.00 $1,500.00

100 BEND, 6" MJ 90° EACH 6.0 $300.00 $1,800.00 $300.00 $1,800.00 $300.00 $1,800.00
101 BEND, 8" MJ 90° EACH 4.0 $325.00 $1,300.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 $350.00 $1,400.00
102 TEE, 8" X 6" MJ EACH 1.0 $400.00 $400.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00
103 TEE, 8" X 8" MJ EACH 1.0 $425.00 $425.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
104 TEE, 6" X 6" MJ X SW EACH 2.0 $400.00 $800.00 $550.00 $1,100.00 $550.00 $1,100.00
105 TEE, 8" X 6" MJ X SW EACH 8.0 $400.00 $3,200.00 $425.00 $3,400.00 $425.00 $3,400.00
106 CROSS, 6" X 6" MJ X MJ  EACH 1.0 $400.00 $400.00 $475.00 $475.00 $475.00 $475.00
107 CROSS, 8" X 8" MJ X MJ EACH 1.0 $500.00 $500.00 $525.00 $525.00 $525.00 $525.00
108 REDUCER, 6" X 4" MJ X PE EACH 2.0 $250.00 $500.00 $350.00 $700.00 $350.00 $700.00
109 REDUCER, 8" X 4" MJ X PE EACH 2.0 $300.00 $600.00 $400.00 $800.00 $400.00 $800.00
110 REDUCER, 8" X 6" MJ X PE EACH 3.0 $300.00 $900.00 $400.00 $1,200.00 $400.00 $1,200.00
111 SLEEVE, 4" X 12" SOLID EACH 4.0 $275.00 $1,100.00 $300.00 $1,200.00 $300.00 $1,200.00
112 SLEEVE, 6" X 12" SOLID EACH 4.0 $300.00 $1,200.00 $325.00 $1,300.00 $325.00 $1,300.00
113 SLEEVE, 8" X 12" SOLID EACH 2.0 $330.00 $660.00 $400.00 $800.00 $400.00 $800.00
114 VALVE , 6" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 4.0 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $1,850.00 $7,400.00 $1,850.00 $7,400.00
115 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 9.0 $2,200.00 $19,800.00 $2,100.00 $18,900.00 $2,100.00 $18,900.00
116 TAPPING IN VALVE & SLEEVE, 8" X 8" W/ BOX EACH 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
117 CAP, 4" MJ EACH 9.0 $150.00 $1,350.00 $150.00 $1,350.00 $150.00 $1,350.00
118 CAP, 6" MJ EACH 7.0 $150.00 $1,050.00 $175.00 $1,225.00 $175.00 $1,225.00
119 CAP, 8" MJ EACH 4.0 $175.00 $700.00 $200.00 $800.00 $200.00 $800.00
120 HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 10.0 $4,800.00 $48,000.00 $5,000.00 $50,000.00 $5,000.00 $50,000.00
121 REMOVE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 5.0 $1,300.00 $6,500.00 $1,250.00 $6,250.00 $1,250.00 $6,250.00
122 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH 17.0 $120.00 $2,040.00 $125.00 $2,125.00 $125.00 $2,125.00
123 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH 33.0 $130.00 $4,290.00 $150.00 $4,950.00 $150.00 $4,950.00
124 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH 43.0 $140.00 $6,020.00 $200.00 $8,600.00 $200.00 $8,600.00
125 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH 2.0 $150.00 $300.00 $175.00 $350.00 $175.00 $350.00
126 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 6" EACH 13.0 $180.00 $2,340.00 $200.00 $2,600.00 $200.00 $2,600.00
127 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH 31.0 $210.00 $6,510.00 $250.00 $7,750.00 $250.00 $7,750.00
128 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH 32.0 $1,500.00 $48,000.00 $1,500.00 $48,000.00 $1,500.00 $48,000.00
129 SERVICE,SHORTSIDE, 1" EACH 3.0 $1,800.00 $5,400.00 $1,600.00 $4,800.00 $1,600.00 $4,800.00
130 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 1.25" EACH 1.0 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00
131 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 1.5" EACH 2.0 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00
132 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH 31.0 $1,800.00 $55,800.00 $1,850.00 $57,350.00 $1,850.00 $57,350.00
133 6" NITRIL GASKETS EACH 1.0 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00
134 8" NITRIL GASKETS EACH 15.0 $130.00 $1,950.00 $150.00 $2,250.00 $150.00 $2,250.00
135 CASTING/CHIMNEY REPLACEMENT PCC MANHOLE IN PAVEMENT EACH 15.0 $2,250.00 $33,750.00 $2,000.00 $30,000.00 $2,500.00 $37,500.00

TOTAL $4,798,387.18 TOTAL $4,711,475.14 TOTAL $4,792,521.41

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

(1) Peterson Contractors Inc. (2) K. Cunningham Construction Co. Inc.

ENGINEERING DIVISION

244



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council    
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: January 25, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
   2019 Engineering Services 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
   Clay Street Park Drainage  
   City Project No. FL-000-1975 
 
 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services. This supplemental 
agreement will analyze the University Branch of Dry Run creek between W. 12

th
 Street / W. 18

th
 Street 

and Fairview Cemetery / Main St. The existing storm sewer is undersized and lacks capacity during 
certain rainfall events. This drainage study will be an instrument used during the reconstruction of City 
streets and provide recommended area improvements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for the Supplemental Agreement #2 
will be provided by the storm water fund in the amount of $79,931.00. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Downtown Levee Improvements 
Project.  
 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 

 
 
 

245



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 
 

2019 Engineering Services 
Clay Street Park Drainage 

City Project Number ST-077-3146 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (CLIENT), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated December 3, 2018 for the 
municipal engineering support services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the 2019 Engineering Services,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Services for the completion of a drainage study for 
the University Branch drainage basin. The City of Cedar Falls long range plan is to analyze 
different drainage basins around town with older developments, identify storm sewer upgrades 
needed for the design storm event, verify the larger design storm is contained within the ROW and 
have this data available when other projects (e.g. street reconstruction) come up so that the 
appropriate upgrades can be made. The Clay Street Park area is the first location where the City 
would like to complete this type of work. The analysis should identify what size storm sewer is 
needed to meet SUDAS design standards for both low and high flows. The CONSULTANT will 
analyze the University Branch drainage basin from 12th Street to 18th Street between the Fairview 
Cemetery area to Main Street. Existing storm sewer system is undersized and lacks capacity to 
handle certain events. There is an existing 33” storm pipe that flows from northwest to southeast 
through Clay Street Park and there are times during large runoff events that City staff tries to dam 
up water in the park near beehives to prevent downstream flooding at 1515 Washington Street. 
 

B. The CONSULTANT shall complete existing structure field locates of the project site. 
 

1. Locate existing structures and survey existing invert elevations.  
 

C. The CONSULTANT shall complete a drainage study of the area and produce report identifying 
storm sewer upgrades. 
 

1. Attend a kickoff meeting with CLIENT staff to discuss existing drainage analysis, project 
goals and objectives, and project approach and schedule. 

246



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. RC-000-3180 

2. Perform preliminary drainage analysis. 
3. Review record drawings and GIS information. 
4. Complete drainage area delineation. 
5. Complete hydrology of 2, 5, 10, 50, 100 year events. 
6. Complete existing system hydraulic model development 
7. Complete Hydraulic Analysis – Develop two (2) alternatives 
8. Complete Final Drainage Report with recommended improvements, including pipe sizing. 

 
D. The schedule for providing these services is as follows: 

 
1. Field and data collection: February 2019 
2. Hydraulic Analysis: February – March 2019 
3. Draft Drainage Report with recommendations: March 11, 2019 
4. Final Drainage Report: March 29, 2019 

 
E. Additional Services 

 
1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not included in the 

Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may include, but are not necessarily 
limited to; expanding the scope of the project or the work to be completed (e.g. 
construction services are not included in the project scope); requesting the development of 
various documents; extending the time to complete a project through no fault of the 
CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work items that increase the Engineering 
Services and corresponding costs. 

 
 
II. COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a lump 
sum fee of Seventy-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-One Dollars ($79,931.00). The 
compensation for this supplemental agreement is to be segregated from the original agreement. 
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as specified in 
the Professional Services Agreement dated December 3, 2018.  
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 
By:  By:   
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 
Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 
 
Date:  Date: January 24, 2018   

247



                  Department of Community Development  
                   
                    City of Cedar Falls 
                      220 Clay Street 
                      Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
                      Phone:  319-273-8600 
                      Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 
 
To:    Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

From:   Lisa Ahern, Planner 1 

Date:  January 21, 2019 

Subject:   Waiting List for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program (also known as Section 8) is a program of the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It is the government's major 
program for assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, 
safe, and sanitary housing in the private market.  
 
To apply for HCV funding, applicants complete a preliminary application and then are placed on 
a Waiting List. Staff takes names off the Waiting List on a regular basis, determines their final 
eligibility and issues a voucher to those who may participate in the program.     
 
 
ANALYSIS 
In 2018 staff processed 131 applications from the Waiting List. Due to the length of the waiting 
list, it was closed in September 2018 and no new applications have been accepted since that 
time.   As of January 1, 2019, there were still 315 names remaining on the list, with an average 
wait time of 2.3 years.  
 
The program is currently serving 215 households.  The goal is to continue to issue Housing 
Choice Vouchers up to the maximum allowed under the City’s funding limit, which is an 
estimated 230 to 240 households. By keeping the Waiting List closed for a longer period of time, 
staff resources can be directed toward processing the existing applications on file.  This will 
result in serving the maximum number of people possible, given available resources. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Housing Commission met on January 8, 2019 and reviewed the status of the HCV program. 
The Commission agreed that staff resources should continue to be directed towards issuing 
vouchers rather than taking new applications.  The Housing Commission recommends adopting 
a resolution to keep the Waiting List closed at least through July 31, 2019.  
 

248



RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION TO KEEP THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM  
WAITING LIST CLOSED THROUGH JULY 31, 2019 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program (also known as Section 8) is a 

program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It is the government's 
major program for assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, 
safe, and sanitary housing in the private market.  

 
WHEREAS, individuals apply for the program and are placed on a waiting list.  
 
WHEREAS, applicants are contacted when their name comes to the top of the list and a final 

eligibility determination is made at that time for program admission.   
  
WHEREAS, the Waiting List was closed September 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, due 

to the number of applications already on file. 
 
WHEREAS, the Waiting List as of January 1, 2019 included 315 applicants with an average 

wait time of 2.3 years.    
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Commission voted on January 8, 2019 in favor of keeping the 

Waiting List closed at least through July 31, 2019 in order to issue more vouchers and focus on 
serving existing participants. 
 

 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA THAT: 

 

 
The Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program will remain closed through July 31, 

2019.  No new applications will be accepted during this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 ADOPTED this     day of February, 2019. 
 
     
            
     Jim Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST 
 
       
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

249



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

   
 
  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: January 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Iowa Highway 57/W. 1st Street 
  City/State Preconstruction Agreement Addendum 
  Agreement No. 2018-4-269A 
  DOT Project No. NHSX-057-2(29)--3H-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction of the W. 1st Street corridor from Hudson Road to Franklin/Center Street. The 
design and right of way acquisition phase of the project are in the final stages for the 
February 19, 2019 letting by the Iowa DOT. The project will improve the pavement condition, 
provide pedestrian access and mobility, upgrade the roadway geometry to current design 
standards, reduce conflicts with through traffic, improve access management and update the 
utility accommodations. 
 
On November 7, 2018, the City Council approved a preconstruction agreement for the 
funding participation construction cost to be split 50-50 between the City and the DOT. As 
part of this project, the City received $1,750,000 in Federal-aid for the project to be used for 
design, right of way and construction. The attached agreement is an addendum to the 
preconstruction agreement that allocates the remaining $500,000 in Federal-aid for 
construction as part of the city’s cost for the project.  
 
The Community Development Department has reviewed this agreement. Staff recommends 
that the City Council approved and execute the attached Iowa Department of Transportation 
Addendum to the Preconstruction Agreement for the construction of Iowa Highway 57/W. 1st 
Street. 
 
Please feel free to contact me with questions for for additional information. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director, Community Development 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

250



December 2010 

2018-4-269A_CedarFallsREVISED.docx 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Addendum to 

Agreement No. 2018-4-269 
 

County Black Hawk 
City Cedar Falls 
Project No.  NHSX-057-2(29)--3H-07 (DOT) 

STP-057-2(28)--2C-07 (CITY)
Iowa DOT
Addendum No. 2018-4-269A 
Staff Action No.

 
This Addendum, is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the "DOT", and Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Local Public Agency, hereafter designated the "LPA" in 
accordance with Iowa Code Chapters 28E, 306, 306A and 313.4 and 761 Iowa Administrative Code 
Chapter 150 as applicable; 
 
The DOT proposes to establish or make improvements to Iowa 57 within Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 
 
The DOT and the LPA are willing to jointly participate in said project, in the manner hereinafter provided; 
and 
 
The DOT and the LPA previously entered into the following agreement(s) for the above referenced project:   
  
Agreement No. 2017-P-177 for Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) pavement grade and replace on Iowa 57 
(West First Street) in Cedar Falls from Hudson Road to Franklin Street was executed by the DOT and LPA 
on August 21, 2017 and August 7, 2017 respectively; and  
 
Agreement No. 2-16-STPU-006 for 1st Street (IA 57) reconstruction from Hudson Road to Franklin Street 
was executed by the DOT and LPA on October 9, 2017 and September 18, 2017 respectively; and  
 
Agreement No. 2018-4-269 for Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) pavement grade and replace on Iowa 57 
(West First Street) in Cedar Falls from Hudson Road to Franklin Street was executed by the DOT and LPA 
on November 20, 2018 and November 7, 2018 respectively; and 
 
This Addendum reflects the current concept of this project which is subject to modification by mutual 
agreement between the LPA and the DOT. 
 
Now, therefore, it is agreed as follows: 
 

General Provisions 
 

1. Subsequent to the execution of the above referenced Agreements, additional funding of $1,750,000 
was received in Federal-aid from the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments for the project 
and shall hereby be included as follows: The reimbursement to be received by the LPA for Division 1 
cost (roadway construction) shall include the remaining Federal-aid of $500,000 from programs 
administered by the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments. LPA acknowledges its local 
match obligation, which shall be paid in addition to the $500,000 in Federal-aid described in this 
paragraph. 

  

251



December 2010 

2018-4-269A_CedarFallsREVISED.docx 2 

2. If the LPA has completed a Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for an area which is affected by the 
proposed Primary Highway project and the FIS is modified, amended or revised in an area affected 
by the project after the date of this Agreement, the LPA shall promptly provide notice of the 
modification, amendment or revision to the DOT. If the LPA does not have a detailed Flood Insurance 
Study (FIS) for an area which is affected by the proposed Primary Highway project and the LPA does 
adopt an FIS in an area affected by the project after the date of this Agreement, the LPA shall 
promptly provide notice of the FIS to the DOT. 

 
3. The LPA will comply with all provisions of the equal employment opportunity requirements prohibiting 

discrimination and requiring affirmative action to assure equal employment opportunity as required by 
Iowa Code Chapter 216. No person will, on the grounds of age, race, creed, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, religion, pregnancy, or disability, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity for which State funds are used. 

 
4. It is the intent of both (all) parties that no third party beneficiaries be created by this Addendum. 

 
5. If any section, provision, or part of this Addendum shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, 

such finding shall not affect the validity of the Addendum as a whole or any section, provision, or part 
thereof not found to be invalid or unconstitutional, except to the extent that the original intent of the 
Addendum cannot be fulfilled. 

 
6. All previously executed agreement(s) and or addendum(s) will remain in effect except as amended 

herein. 
 

7. This Addendum may be executed in two counterparts, each of which so executed will be deemed to 
be an original. 

 
8. This Addendum, as well as the unaffected provisions of any previous agreement(s), addendum(s), 

and/or amendment(s); represents the entire Agreement between the LPA and DOT regarding this 
project. Any subsequent change or modification to the terms of this Agreement will be in the form of a 
duly executed amendment to this document. 

 
  

252



December 2010 

2018-4-269A_CedarFallsREVISED.docx 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Addendum No. 2018-4-269A as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS:  
 
 
 
By:                                                                     Date                                                      , 20___. 
Title:    Mayor 
 
I,                                                                        , certify that I am the Clerk of the City, and that 

______________                                                               , who signed  said  Addendum for and on behalf 

of the City was duly authorized to  execute the same on the          day of                                      , 20___. 

Signed: _____________________________ 
    City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
 
By:                                                               Date                                                         , 20___. 
      E. Jon Ranney 
      District Engineer 
      District 2 
 

253



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY2020 Budget 

 
Attached is the state required notice for the FY20 budget hearing.  The rate on the 
notice is $10.95.  This rate will cause a .13% decrease on residential properties, a 
.2.41% decrease on commercial & industrial properties, and a 7.05% decrease on 
multi-residential properties.  
 

The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 

that the hearing be set for February 18, 2019. 

 
If you have any questions, about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

254



Form 631.1 Department of Management

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

BUDGET ESTIMATE
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019 - ENDING JUNE 30, 2020

City of  , Iowa

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Budget at 

on 2/18/2019 at 7:00 pm

(Date) xx/xx/xx (hour)

The Budget Estimate Summary of proposed receipts and expenditures is shown below.

Copies of the the detailed proposed Budget may be obtained or viewed at the offices of the Mayor,

City Clerk, and at the Library.

The estimated Total tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on regular property  . . . . . . . . . . $ 10.95250

The estimated tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on Agricultural land is    . .  . . . . . . . . . $ 3.00375

At the public hearing, any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part 

of the proposed budget.

319-273-8600
phone number City Clerk/Finance Officer's NAME

Budget FY Re-estimated FY Actual FY

2020 2019 2018

            (a) (b)  (c)

Revenues & Other Financing Sources

Taxes Levied on Property 1 21,626,843 20,637,096 19,767,359

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0
   Net Current Property Taxes 3 21,626,843 20,637,096 19,767,359

Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 2,939,590 3,716,430 4,536,373

Other City Taxes 6 6,057,824 5,907,902 5,717,388

Licenses & Permits 7 984,000 1,010,592 1,304,319

Use of Money and Property 8 949,040 1,725,319 1,567,645

Intergovernmental 9 12,324,006 15,283,984 15,413,455

Charges for Fees & Service 10 14,050,550 13,055,878 12,810,524

Special Assessments 11 0 0 33,272

Miscellaneous 12 668,857 12,972,218 3,630,352

Other Financing Sources 13 2,892,000 3,113,542 65,850

Transfers In 14 10,605,160 12,361,035 11,617,549
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 73,097,870 89,783,996 76,464,086

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 16 12,142,350 11,850,330 10,837,537

Public Works 17 13,973,620 13,272,121 12,845,677

Health and Social Services 18 213,440 24,220 124,208

Culture and Recreation 19 8,825,290 8,118,353 7,332,405

Community and Economic Development 20 2,696,130 2,595,760 2,427,269

General Government 21 5,679,930 5,075,103 3,910,067

Debt Service 22 1,177,640 1,951,995 1,542,453

Capital Projects 23 14,972,190 18,167,914 21,524,805

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 59,680,590 61,055,796 60,544,421

Business Type / Enterprises 25 11,497,630 9,633,238 11,681,275
Total ALL Expenditures 26 71,178,220 70,689,034 72,225,696

 Transfers Out 27 10,605,160 12,361,035 11,617,549
Total ALL Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 81,783,380 83,050,069 83,843,245

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -8,685,510 6,733,927 -7,379,159

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 97,450,564 90,716,637 98,095,796
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 88,765,054 97,450,564 90,716,637

Cedar Falls

Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay St

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Fin & Bus Op

255



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: January 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Setting a Public Hearing for Text Amendments to Section 29-160, CHN College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 

 

 

REQUEST: 
Zoning Ordinance Amendments 
Section 29-160, CHN College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 

PETITIONER: Department of Community Development 

LOCATION: College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 
 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
As stated in the Comprehensive Plan, one of the long-term goals of the College Hill 
Neighborhood is to “spur local development of more mixed-use storefronts with apartment 
dwellings above,” and to “bring mixed-use commercial development between 21st and 22nd 
Street to link the “Upper Hill” and “Lower Hill” along College Street into a more cohesive, 
walkable retail area.” The Planning & Zoning Commission and the Community Development 
Department are recommending changes to the zoning ordinance to define and establish parking 
and design standards for mixed-use buildings in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District (CHN). The proposed changes to the Section 29-160, College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay Zoning District will delete ambiguous language in the zoning ordinance that has created 
confusion about the parking requirements for buildings that have ground floor commercial uses 
and upper floor apartments. The intended goal of the proposed amendments is to create clear 
and objective standards in the code to facilitate consistent review and approval of mixed-use 
and multiple dwelling development in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District, specifically 
the College Hill Business District (area zoned C-3) and immediately adjacent higher density 
multiple dwelling districts (areas zoned R-3 and R-4). These changes will not apply in other 
areas of the city or affect the remainder of the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District, 
which is zoned for lower density residential development (R-2).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed a number of mixed-use development 
plans in the College Hill Neighborhood in the past few years. Given ambiguity in the zoning 
ordinance, City staff has interpreted the principal use in a mixed-use building in the C-3 
District to be the use located on the main floor or street level floor of the property. Upper floor 

256



uses are considered secondary or incidental uses of the property. The code currently states 
that parking is not required for secondary, accessory residential uses. However, as the 
demand for higher density residential near the UNI campus in the College Hill neighborhood 
has increased, larger mixed-use buildings have been proposed than when these definitions of 
principal and secondary were originally written into the code. Therefore, there has been 
concern that a large number of apartments can be built without any private, off-street parking.  
The Commission requested that staff explore options to clarify the language in the College Hill 
Overlay District to provide clear direction on what is required for mixed-use buildings in the 
College Hill business district (the area zoned C-3).  Defining what a mixed-use building is, 
removing ambiguous and conflicting language in the code, and updating the ordinance to 
address design standards for mixed-use buildings will provide for consistent review of 
applications, clarity for the public, and guidance for developers when they are designing new 
projects in the College Hill Neighborhood.  Based on public input at the Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting on December 12, the Commission also requested that for existing 
mixed-use buildings in the business district, upper floor residential uses remain exempt from 
parking requirements. Existing mixed-use buildings in the College Hill Business District are 
generally two stories in height, so this allowance will keep existing apartments conforming and 
maintain the option for conversion of second story space into residential dwellings for those 
few buildings where the upper floor space is currently underutilized.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
In Section 29-160, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, there are specific parking 
standards that are listed for a number of land uses, including single-unit dwellings, two-unit 
dwellings (duplexes), multiple dwellings, boardinghouse/rooming house, and fraternity/sorority, 
but there is no standard for what is required in a commercial or mixed-use building.  However, 
even though there is indication both in the Comprehensive Plan and in the code that mixed-use 
buildings are encouraged within the College Hill Business District, there is no “mixed-use” 
definition and there is ambiguous language about principal, secondary, and accessory uses. 
The language implies that upper floor uses within a “commercial use” are accessory or 
secondary uses and no on-site parking is required for such uses. Calling upper floor apartments 
in a multi-story building “accessory uses” seems counter-intuitive because they do not fall 
clearly into the definition of an accessory use, which is typically reserved for uses and structures 
that are subordinate to the main use of the property. In fact, the examples of accessory uses 
listed in the definition include parking and storage. The other term used in the code that refers to 
upper floor uses is “secondary.” However, the code does not include a definition of what a 
secondary use is, which has led to much speculation and interpretation, parsing of the zoning 
code language and frustration on the part of the public, developers, City staff and the 
Commission.  
 
The common understanding of a mixed-use building is that it is a building that contains multiple 
principal uses in one building. There may also be accessory uses, such as parking and storage 
areas, within the building that serve the principal users of the building. These accessory uses 
should be carefully placed within the building so they contribute to the convenience and comfort 
of the businesses and residents, but do not detract from the pedestrian environment along the 
street.  
 
While further study and refinement to parking standards in the zoning code is warranted, staff 
recommends adopting the following limited changes to the College Hill Overlay as an interim 
measure to provide clarity for the public and for property owners that want to move forward with 

257



new buildings and improvements in the College Hill business district. Note: These changes will 
only apply in the College Hill Overlay District and will not change standards in the remainder of 
the city. In summary, Staff recommends: 

 eliminating the confusing language about accessory and secondary use; 

 adding a definition of a mixed-use building; 

 Clearly stating the parking requirements for the uses within a mixed-use building. Staff 
recommends adding a requirement for upper floor residential dwellings within a mixed-
use building at a ratio of 1 parking stall per bedroom, but not less than 1 parking stall per 
unit.  This ensures that all unit sizes and bedrooms are treated the same and creates a 
simple calculation for the building as a whole. Staff is also recommending eliminating the 
visitor parking requirement. There are a considerable number of on and off-street public 
parking areas available for visitor and customer parking within one block of College 
Street. Since demand for visitor parking fluctuates, shared and strategically placed public 
parking is the most efficient way to meet this demand, rather than requiring it on each 
private lot.  

 Add language to ensure that upper floor residential uses within existing mixed-use 
buildings remain exempt from parking requirements; 

 For consistency purposes, staff recommends changing the parking requirement for 
Multiple Dwellings to match the proposed parking requirement for residential dwelling 
units within a mixed-use building. Note: This would only apply to areas zoned R-3 and R-
4, since multiple dwelling buildings are not allowed in the remainder of the College Hill 
Overlay District, which is zoned R-2;  

 Establishing minimum and maximum setbacks for mixed-use buildings to ensure a 
mainstreet character as envisioned for the College Hill Business District.  

 Establishing building design standards for mixed-use buildings that address safe and 
prominent building entries, quality storefront design, and standards for high quality 
building materials and building articulation to match what is required for multiple dwellings 
within the College Hill Overlay.  

 Some minor clean-up on the terms used for different types of dwellings to match Section 
29-2, Definitions.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council set a date for 
public hearing regarding an ordinance amending Section 29-160, College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay Zoning District, for February 18, 2019.   
 

258



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 29, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to amend the text of the zoning ordinance, specifically Section 29-160, the College 

Hill Neighborhood Overlay District, as described below, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change to the text of 

the zoning ordinance, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to amend Section 

29-160, CHN, College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, of Chapter Twenty-nine 

(29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to define and establish 

standards for mixed-use buildings, and clarify certain other provisions related to parking 

requirements for mixed-use buildings and multiple dwelling buildings located in the College Hill 

Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District.   

 

And that said public hearing shall be held on the 18th day of February, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock 

P.M., in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk 

is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of February, 2019. 

 

 

  _________________________ 

                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

259



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: January 29, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
  Project Number BR-106-3172 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct a portion of Ridgeway Avenue 
Chancellor Drive to Hwy 58. The project will require the acquisition of right of way and 
temporary easements along the corridor. Plans for the project shows the need for 
acquisitions from approximately four (4) properties. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
We recommend that the Council schedule a Public Hearing for March 4, 2019, to be 
held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

260



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE A PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE RIDGEWAY AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE ACQUISITION OF PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR SAID PROJECT 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on the 4th day of March, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of said City on the proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction Project and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for the project. 
 
Written objections to the proposal may be filed with City Clerk on or before the date of hearing, 
and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 
 
This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the 4th   
day of February, 2019. 
 
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

261



SHEET NO.REVISION DESCRIPTIONBYDATENO

CAD FILE:

CAD DATE:

PROJECT DATE:

PROJECT NO:

c:\pw_workdir\pw_ie\ttl\d0306870\30 Percent Displays_6B.dgn

1/25/2019 2:13:18 PM

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

RIDGEWAY AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE 1

CHANCELLOR DRIVE TO IA HWY 58

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

0

FEET

50

N

RIDGEWAY AVE

N
O

R
D
IC
 D

R
IV

E

OPTION 6B

PROJECT OVERVIEW 262


	Top
	1. Minutes -  January 21, 2019
	190121MINUTES.docx

	2. Ordinance 2935 Rezoning A1 to R1
	2935.docx

	3. 1/21/19 committee of the whole minutes
	Comm of the Whole 01 21 19.doc

	4. Departmental Monthly Report - December 2018
	Monthly Report - December 2018.pdf

	5. Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement-First Tobacco Violation
	Up In Smoke Tobacco Violation.pdf

	6. Liquor Licenses
	Liquor Beer 01-31-19.doc

	7. New Job Classfication - Video Production Specialist
	Memo City Council Approval of Job Class.doc
	Video Prod Specialist Job Class.pdf

	8. Revised Personnel Policies
	1-Personnel Policy Memo (5-11-18).pdf
	2-Res.docx

	9. Flood Buyout Lease
	2019-21 Flood Buyout Lease 01-29-2019.pdf

	10. Portable classroom storage agreement
	Storage agreement CC.pdf

	11. Furniture Bids for PS Facility
	1-Memo PS Furniture.pdf
	2-CFPS Furniture Bid_Letter_updated 20190201.pdf

	12. W. 1st Street Acquisition
	1.council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx
	2.2191_001.pdf
	3.2192_001.pdf
	4.W1stPropAcq190204.pdf

	13. Supp Agrmt No. 1 with Snyder - Levee
	1. Levee - Snyder Supplemental.docx
	2. PSA_2019-01-24_SupplementalAgreement01.pdf

	14. Place to Play Playground Project - Low Bid
	1. PTP Park Bid Opening Memo.docx
	2. PTP Park Bid Tab.pdf

	15. 2019 Street Construction - Low Bid
	1. 2019 Street Recon Bid Opening Memo.docx
	2. BID TAB - 2019.pdf

	16. 2019 Engineering Services - Supplemental Agreement #2
	1. 2019 Engineering Services - SA 2 (1).docx
	2. PSA_SuppAgr02_2019-01-24_ClayParkDrainage.pdf

	17. Section 8 Waiting List Closed
	Memo to keep the Waiting List Closed.pdf
	Resolution_Waiting List Closed until 7-31-19.pdf

	18. Addendum to Preconstruction Agreement with IDOT
	council memo on w 1st street IDOT addendum to preconstruction agreement 1-31-19.docx
	2018-4-269A_CedarFallsREVISED.pdf

	19. Set PH - FY20 Budget
	1-budget hearing council.mem.doc
	2-FY20CityBudget.pdf

	20. Set PH - Text amendments to Section 29-160 College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District
	1- Council staff report 1.31.19.docx
	Res-Set PH - CHN zoning overlay.docx

	21. Set PH - Ridgeway Ave Recon
	1. Memo-Council Pubic Hearing.docx
	2. PH.docx
	3.30% Overview_6B.PDF

	22. Bills &amp; Payroll for 2/04 Council
	Bottom

